


Securing Your Tomorrows' Today

This Annual Report for the period ended 31 December 2005 has been prepared by Axis REIT Managers Berhad (649450-W) as the Manager 
of Axis-REIT. Whilst every care has been taken in relation to its accuracy, no warranty is given or implied. The information provided is not 
investment advice and recipients should consider obtaining independent advice before making any decision that relies on this information.
All values are expressed in Malaysian currency unless otherwise stated.
This Annual Report is issued in February 2006.

OUR LOGO, VISION & 
BUSINESS PHILOSOPHY

Our Logo depicts the four corners of the world where "Eastern 

Philosophy Meets Western Business Practises"; representing the  

international components of Axis REIT Managers Berhad. It 

displays the culmination of their experiences, backgrounds and 

knowledge from Norway, Australia and Southeast Asia.

Our vision is to become the Country's leading supplier of 

commercial, office and light industrial real estate. 

Our Business Philosophy is to provide our customers with the 

best solutions in the supply of office/commercial and industrial 

space. We practice an open, transparent and creative 

management of our real estate portfolio, whilst being 'hands on' 

with our tenants. Our principal objective is to translate our 

business philosophy into best management practises thereby 

maximising  returns to Axis-REIT Unitholders.
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What is a REIT
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UNITHOLDERS

Axis-REIT

REAL ESTATE ASSETS
Subject Properties
- Axis Business Park
- Menara Axis
- Crystal Plaza
- Infinite Centre
- Axis Plaza
- Kompleks Kemajuan
- Kayangan Depot

(Acquisition will only 
be completed
in 2nd quarter 2006)

Other authorised investments

OSK TRUSTEES
BERHAD

(The Trustee)

Axis-REIT MANAGERS
BERHAD

(The Manager)

AXIS MANAGEMENT
SDN BHD

(Property Management
Company)

INVESTMENT IN Axis-REIT

OWNERSHIP OF ASSETS
(VESTED IN TRUSTEE)

DISTRIBUTION IN THE FORM OF DIVIDENDS
AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS

RENTAL
INCOME

TRUSTEE'S FEE

ACT ON BEHALF OF
UNITHOLDERS

MANAGER'S FEE

MANAGEMENT
SERVICES

PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT

COMPANY'S FEE

PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT

SERVICES

WHAT IS A REIT?

          A REIT is a collective investment scheme where funds from investors are pooled and 

invested towards a specified goal as set out in the investment objective of the fund.  In 

addition, a REIT is a fund that invests (via funds raised from investors) in a portfolio of real 

estate assets or real estate-related assets. Rents from these real estate generate income 

collected from tenants, which is then distributed to investors at regular intervals. REITs 

therefore provide investors with an alternative transparent, liquid vehicle to invest in a 

diverse portfolio of professionally managed income-generating commercial real estate, 

which has the potential of a capital upside over the long run. 

THE STRUCTURE OF Axis-REIT
The following diagram illustrates the structure of Axis-REIT and the relationships between Axis-REIT, the Manager, the Property 

Management Company, the Trustee and the Unitholders.



Financial Highlights
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Axis- REIT UNIT PRICE PERFORMANCE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

COMPARABLE RETURNS

Axis-REIT
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KLCI Source: Bloomberg

Source: Bloomberg, EPF, Maybank
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9,677
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Net Income (RM '000) (1)

Income Distribution (RM '000)
Earnings per Unit (sen)
Distribution per Unit (sen)
Annualised management expense ratio (%)
Annualised distribution yield (%) (2)

Annualised distribution yield (%) (3)

Total Assets (RM '000)
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Market Capitalisation (RM '000)     
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Net asset value per Unit (RM)          

Unit price (RM) - IPO - retail portion       
Market Price per unit as at 31 Dec 2005 (RM)        
No. of units in circulation ( '000)      
No. of Unitholders        

Note : (1) - Axis-REIT was listed on 3 August 2005 and commenced to recognize gross revenue on this date

         whereas the prospectus forecast was to take effect only on 15 August 2005.

(2) - This is based on the IPO price per unit of RM 1.25 for the retail portion.

(3) - This is based on the Market Price per unit as at 31 December 2005 of RM 1.73 per unit.
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Chairman's Message
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I have great pleasure to present to the Unitholders of Axis 
Real Estate Investment Trust (Axis-REIT), the inaugural 
Annual Report of Axis-REIT for the financial period ended 31 
December 2005.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management of Axis 
REIT Managers Berhad (the Manager), it would be appropriate to 
mention at this juncture that Axis-REIT was the first REIT to be 
listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (Bursa Malaysia), 
when on 3 August 2005, its units were admitted into the Official 
List. The listing of Axis-REIT units were undertaken under the 
Securities Commission's (SC's) new Guidelines on Real Estate 
Investment Trusts,  introduced in January 2005, which 
superseded the previous Guidelines on Property Trust Funds.

Of Axis-REIT's total fund size of 205,901,000 units, 81,400,000 
units were allocated to institutional and selected investors at a 
price of RM 1.38 per unit and 17,000,000 units were offered to 
the public at a price of RM 1.25 per unit. Of the remaining 
107,501,000 units, 107,500,000 units were issued to, and 
retained by, the vendors of the properties, which Axis-REIT 
acquired and 1,000 units were issued to Axis REIT Managers 
Bhd as promoter units.

Upon listing, Axis-REIT achieved an opening price of RM1.48 per 
unit, and closed at RM1.68, a premium of 34.4% over the retail 
price at the end of the first listing day. I am pleased to report that 
the unit price closed on 31 December 2005 at RM1.73 per unit, 
representing a gain of more than 38% over the retail offer price.

Unitholders will also be delighted to know that the Manager has 
declared an income distribution of RM9,677,347 which translates 
to 4.70 sen per unit. This income distribution represents an 
improvement of 25% over the Manager's forecast Distribution Per 
Unit ("DPU") of 3.76 sen for the period under review. In terms of 
returns, the DPU represents an annualized yield of 9.2% based 
on the retail offer price of RM1.25 per unit.

I am also pleased to report that despite the current environment 
of rising interest rates, with Bank Negara Malaysia's last interest 
rate hike announcement at the end of 2005, Axis-REIT's unit 
price has remained resilient.

While we fully appreciate that interest rates are expected to rise 
further in 2006, the Manager shall continue to identify and 
acquire earnings accretive assets and implement suitable 
strategies to improve rental returns, as a means to manage the 
impact of interest rate increases to Axis-REIT's unit price, thereby 
staying ahead of the curve.

Axis-REIT Outperforms Forecast
Axis-REIT has demonstrated its ability to offer investors an 
alternative investment in a quality, diverse and well-managed 
portfolio of properties. In addition the Manager has proven its 
ability to deliver on its promise to investors of expanding the 
property portfolio quickly. This was done when two additional 
properties were acquired within four months of listing. 

Kompleks Kemajuan in Petaling Jaya and Kayangan Depot in 
Shah Alam were acquired on 2nd December 2005, for a total 
sum of RM45,100,000. These acquisitions have and will be totally 
funded by internal funds and borrowings. The timing of these 
acquisitions does not have any material effect on the financial 
results of Axis-REIT for the period ended 31st December 2005. 

The Manager took over the operations of Kompleks Kemajuan on 
16 December 2005 and is expected to take possession of 
Kayangan Depot in the second quarter of 2006. These new 
acquisitions have also demonstrated the Manager's ability to 
undertake acquisitions below market value. The purchase of 
these two properties shall provide Unitholders a capital gain of 
about RM9,000,000 and an enhanced DPU of 0.8 sen, on an 
annualized basis.

With these additions, Axis-REIT now owns a portfolio of seven 
office and office/industrial real estate properties with an 
aggregate Net Lettable Area (NLA) of 1,348,796 sq. ft. This 
represents an expansion of 364,178 sq. ft., or an increase of 
37.0%, over the initial NLA of the properties in the portfolio. 

All seven properties continue to outperform neighbouring 
properties through their superior locations, excellent building 
management and proactive tenant care strategies. 



With the recent listing of two more REITs on Bursa Malaysia, and 
I am certain there will be more to come, it is timely for the 
regulatory authorities to review the incentives available, so as to 
enable Malaysian REITs to continue to be competitive and 
attractive to both local and foreign investors. 

Axis-REIT Voted Second Best IPO For 2005
(The Edge Malaysia - 8 Jan 2006)
Axis-REIT's listing is widely recognized as one of the most 
important developments of the real estate market in Malaysia and 
represents a major milestone for the capital market, paving the 
way for more REITs to be listed. 

In one of Malaysia's most respected weekly business 
publications, Axis-REIT was rated as the second best IPO for the 
year since it was the first of its asset class, it performed 
admirably after its listing, and was well received because it 
offered units to the market with an 8% yield, thus creating an 
upside for investors. 

The fact that new acquisitions were announced within four  
months of listing demonstrated the strengths of the Manager in 
creating future value for the REIT. 

Acknowledgements
On behalf of the Manager, I would like to take this opportunity to 
thank the Unitholders of Axis-REIT for their continued confidence 
in us. Our appreciation is also extended to the SC and Bursa 
Malaysia for their invaluable counsel during the listing of Axis-
REIT.

I would also like to acknowledge our gratitude to our strategic 
business partners, namely OSK Trustees Berhad, Aseambankers 
Malaysia Berhad, Commerce International Merchant Bankers 
Berhad, Malayan Banking Securities Sdn. Bhd., Malayan 
Banking Berhad, Bumiputra-Commerce Bank Berhad, Symphony 
Capital Sdn Bhd., Zaid Ibrahim & Co, SF Chan & Co, KPMG, 
KPMG Tax Services Sdn Bhd, Colliers, Jordan Lee & Jaafar Sdn. 
Bhd., CH Williams Talhar & Wong, Haz-Iq Capital Sdn. Bhd. and 
Archer Corporate Services Sdn. Bhd.  

Last, but by no means least, our thanks to the tenants of Axis-
REIT properties for their kind support and cooperation.

Dato' Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi
Chairman
Axis REIT Managers Berhad

Date: 21 February 2006
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Management Delivers Results
The Manager's extensive experience in managing investment 
grade properties has contributed significantly to the performance 
of Axis-REIT. The Executive Committee of the Manager meets 
regularly and they bring along their experiences to bear in the 
running of Axis-REIT through the targeting of new potential 
acquisitions, property management related matters, as well as 
looking at the needs of tenants.

Their very professional approach has resulted in excellent 
renewals being obtained post-listing and enhancements within 
the buildings in the portfolio. 

Tenancy commitments amounting to 188,747 sq. ft., representing 
19.2% of the total NLA (of the 5 properties), were successfully 
concluded during the period under review.  Of this figure, 
173,185 sq. ft. was in renewal of existing tenancies, whilst the 
balance 15,562 sq. ft. was new tenancies. The percentage 
increase in income for both the renewed and new tenancies is 
almost 23% or RM1,120,000, on an annualized basis.

At the same time, the Manager has also achieved savings in the 
operational costs of the properties in Axis-REIT.

Bright Outlook For REITs
As Malaysian investors become more discerning in their 
investment decisions, there will be a growing realization that 
REITs compare more favourably to similar investment instruments 
such as Time Deposits, Bonds and other Fixed Income 
securities. 

This realization may become more apparent with the increasing 
uncertainty in the direction of the equities market. 

The stated income distribution policies of REITs will also be a 
contributing factor to its attractiveness as a defensive stock in an 
investment portfolio.

Various government incentives, which were introduced recently, 
have given a boost to REITs in general. Amongst these are the 
elimination of Real Property Gains Tax and stamp duties for the 
purchase of properties by REITs. Despite these incentives, much 
still needs to be done to ensure Malaysian REITs are able to 
provide continued growth and gain acceptance as an asset 
class, as seen in more matured markets such as Australia and 
the United States of America. 

From a regional perspective, REITs in Asia are gaining in 
popularity and is attracting considerable interest from 
international fund managers. As a result of this, a number of 
countries, including Malaysia, have begun reforms of their local 
property laws and tax regulations to enable REITs to be 
established in their jurisdictions. 

Singapore continues to lead in this field, and it is acknowledged 
that their tax incentives and property law reforms are the major 
reasons for the success of their REITs. 



Manager's Report
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The Deed was entered into on 15 June 2005 between Axis-REIT Managers as the Manager of Axis-REIT, and OSK Trustees Berhad, as 
the Trustee of Axis-REIT, and the Deed was registered and lodged with the Securities Commission (SC) on 16 June 2005.

Axis-REIT commenced business on the 3 August 2005 and was formed to own and invest primarily in commercial, office and 
office/industrial real estate. The primary objectives of the Fund are:

(a) to provide Unitholders with distribution of income; and
(b) to achieve long-term growth in the NAV per Unit of the Fund.

2005
(AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005)

277,850,172

205,901,000

1.349

1.73

1.86

1.48

Total Net Asset Value (RM)

Units in Circulation (Units)

Net Asset Value per unit (RM)

Market value per Unit (RM) as at 31 Dec 2005

Highest Traded Price for the Period (RM)

Lowest Traded Price for the Period (RM)

RESULTS

Total Trust Revenue

Total Property Expenses

Total Income

Total Non-Property Expenses

Income before Taxation

Income after Taxation

Earnings per Unit after Tax (sen)

Distribution per Unit (DPU) Sen

ACTUAL
(RM'000)

14,089

2,300

11,789

1,737

10,052

10,018

 4.87

4.70

PROSPECTUS
(RM'000)

12,882

2,261

10,621

2,470

8,151

7,908

3.84

3.76

The Manager is pleased to submit their first report and audited financial 
statements to Unitholders of Axis Real Estate Investment Trust (Axis-REIT) for 
the period from 3 August, 2005 (date of commencement) to 31 December, 2005 
(the "Period").

Since the listing of Axis-REIT on the Bursa Malaysia on the 3 August 2005, the 
Manager has focused on actively managing the property portfolio with the 
objective of delivering the forecast yield to Unitholders. In addition the Manager 
has successfully acquired two properties since listing that would further 
enhance the portfolio of Axis- REIT and enhance distributions to Unitholders as 
well as provide diversity in the property portfolio. The performance of the Period 
demonstrates the commitment of the Manager to deliver a superior performance 
for the benefit of Unitholders.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY OF AXIS-REIT
Axis-REIT is a real estate investment trust constituted by the Deed and principally 
regulated by Securities Laws (as defined in section 2(1) of the SCA), the SC 
Guidelines on REITs, the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the Rules of the 
Depository and taxation laws and rulings (collectively "Applicable Laws and 
Requirements").

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE
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The Manager is pleased to report that for the Period, commencing from 3 August 2005 till 31 December 2005, the total revenue of the 
Trust was RM14,088,960 of which RM328,289 was attributable to interest income. Gross rental income for the Period was 
RM13,760,131 and this represents a 10.3% increase in comparison to the original projections in the prospectus dated June 30, 2005. 
The increase in rental was mainly attributable to the increase in rental rates on renewed tenancies, the establishment of fresh tenancies, 
an increase in car park income, and the gross rental income of RM140,908 from the acquisition of Kompleks Kemajuan, which was 
completed on 16 December 2005.

For the Period, total expenditure was RM4,036,629 comprising property expenses of RM2,299,910 and non-property expenses of 
RM1,736,719.

In the Prospectus dated June 30, 2005, the Trust forecast an amount of RM7,908,000 of Earnings after Tax for the period ending 31 
December 2005 whereas the audited results were RM10,018,000. The deviation of RM2,110,000 representing 26.7% between the 
forecast and audited results was largely due to:-

Timing Of Income Recognition
The Prospectus had forecasted gross rental income recognition of the five (5) properties acquired by the Trust to commence on 15 
August 2005 but listing was brought forward to 3 August 2005 instead. Proceeds from the IPO were used to settle four (4) 
properties on 4 August 2005 and one (1) property on 8 August 2005. The additional gross rental income generated by the five (5) 
properties amounted to RM871,000 but is also set off by recognition of additional property expenses.

Acquisition Of Kompleks Kemajuan On 16 December 2005
Kompleks Kemajuan contributed RM95,000 of Net Property Income from 16 December 2005 till 31 December 2005. This new 
acquisition was not reflected in the Prospectus' forecast.

Strong Leasing Results & Stable Occupancy
The Manager has secured renewals from existing tenancies as well as established new tenancies due to the preferred location and 
quality of the properties in the Trust's portfolio and has remained in line or above the IPO forecasts.

14 Tenancy commitments amounting to 188,747 sq ft representing 19.2% of the total net lettable area of the five IPO Properties 
were successfully concluded. This was concluded from June 2, 2005 till 31 December, 2005 and this is represented by 173,185 sq 
ft in renewed existing tenancies as well as 15,562 sq ft in new tenancies. The increase income is annualized at RM1,120,000 
representing a 23% rise over the existing tenancies negotiated.

Axis-REIT's average occupancy remained unchanged at 99% for the period on the portfolio of properties listed at the time of the 
IPO. The Manager is working towards 100% occupancy in both the original portfolio as well as recently acquired properties in the 
2006 financial year.

Reduction In Interest Expense
The Prospectus had assumed a book-building price of RM1.25 per unit for the institutional investors' portion but due to 
overwhelming subscription the book-building price achieved was RM1.38 per unit. As a result, the Axis-REIT was able to raise an 
additional RM10,600,000 in cash. Together with the crossing over of tenants' security deposit of close to RM10,500,000, Axis-REIT 
was able to reduce its initial borrowings to fund the acquisitions of the five (5) properties. Secondly, the Prospectus had assumed 
an interest rate cost of 5.00% per annum whereas Axis-REIT was able to fund its borrowings at a rate between 4.40% per annum to 
4.50% per annum. For the period ended 31 December 2005, the interest expense was RM738,000 as compared to the 
Prospectus's forecast of RM1,161,000 - a total reduction of RM423,000.

Listing Expenses Charged Against Unitholders’ Fund
For the period ended 31 December 2005 a sum of RM230,000 in respect of facility fees paid to a financial institution, stamp duty, 
legal and loan documentation fees for securing bank borrowings were included as 'Listing Expenses' and charged directly against 
Unitholders' Fund.

Provision For Taxation
There was a reduction in tax provision for the period ended by RM209,000 mainly due to tax-exempt interest income of RM309,000.

Provision For Doubtful Debts
There was a non-occurrence of bad debt for a specific tenant and the provision made amounting to RM150,000 was written back.

Others
The additional gross rental income, as mentioned above, has also resulting in a higher payout for property management fees. 
There was also an overall reduction in total expenditure due to economies of scale and favorable terms extended by the various 
service providers.

The favorable deviation mentioned above, of RM2,110,000 has enabled Axis-REIT to make a higher (by RM1,934,000) than disclosed 
income distribution for the period ended 31 December 2005 for the benefit of all Unitholders.

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>



DISTRIBUTION PER UNIT EXCEEDS FORECAST
No distribution was paid during the Period. For the Period under review, income before taxation and available for distribution stood at 
RM10,052,331. Pursuant to the Distribution Policy as disclosed in the Trust's Prospectus dated 30 June 2005 the Manager has 
declared and the Trustee approved an income distribution of 4.7 sen per unit, totaling RM9,677,347 (equivalent to 96.3% of the 
earnings before tax) for the financial period ended 31 December 2005, and to be paid on 28 February 2006. This leaves an 
undistributed income before taxation of RM375,000. With a tax provision of RM34,000 the retained earnings after tax amounted to 
RM341,000.

The Distribution per Unit ("DPU") of 4.70 sen translates to a yield of 6.65% based on the closing price of RM1.73 on 31 December 2005. 
The result was 25% ahead of forecasts (3.76 sen for the period) and is in line with the objectives of the Fund to provide Unitholders with 
excellent distributions in line with the Manager's strategies.

BREAKDOWN OF UNITHOLDERS

  

DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGER
Directors who served since commencement are:

DIRECTOR

Dato’ Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi
Dato’ Mohamed Salleh Bajuri
Dato’ Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah
Geroge Stewart LaBrooy
Lim Kian Thiam
Stephen Tew Peng Hwee

DIRECTORS BENEFITS
Since the date of commencement, no Director of the Manager has received or become entitled to receive any benefit by reason of a 
contract made by the Trust or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company 
in which the Director has a substantial financial interest, other than certain Directors who may be deemed to have derived a benefit by 
virtue of certain property management fees receivable in the ordinary course of business from the companies in which the Directors 
have interest.

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the period, which had the object of enabling Directors of the Manager to acquire 
benefits by means of the acquisition of units in, or debentures of the Trust or any other body corporate.

MANAGERS FEES
The Manager is entitled to receive a fee of up to a maximum of 1% per annum of the NAV of Axis-REIT, calculated on a monthly basis 
and payable to the Manager monthly in arrears. There will be no payment due to the Manager by way of remuneration for its services 
upon the subscription for the purchase or sale of Axis-REIT's Units or upon any distribution of income and capital.

The Trustee and Unitholders must approve any increase in the maximum permitted level of the Manager's fees by way of an ordinary 
resolution of the Unitholders passed at a Unitholders' meeting convened in accordance with the Deed.

For the period 31 December 2005, the Manager's fee was RM 794,177 representing 0.70% per annum of the NAV of Axis-REIT. The 
Manager did not receive any soft commissions during the Period.

Save for the expenses incurred for the general overheads and costs of services which the Manager is expected to provide, or falling 
within the normal expertise of the Manager, the Manager has the right to be reimbursed the fees, costs, charges, expenses and 
outgoings incurred by it that are directly related and necessary to the business of the Fund. 
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PERCENTAGE OF

UNITHOLDINGS

0.76%
0.65%
1.72%

11.38%
85.49%

100%

NUMBER OF

UNITHOLDINGS

1,557,000
1,345,500
3,549,000

23,424,000
176,025,500

205,901,000

PERCENTAGE OF

UNITHOLDERS

59.21%
14.31%
11.51%
10.53%
4.44%

100%

NUMBER OF

UNITHOLDERS

720
174
140
128
54

1,216

5,000 and below
5,001 to 10,000
10,001 to 50,000
50,001 to 500,000
500,001 and above

            ALTERNATE

-        
 -        

Alex Lee Lao
-        

Khoo Cheang Ee
-        



GROWTH STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT POLICY
The Manager has demonstrated its commitment to growth both organically as well as through new acquisitions, a strategy that was well 
documented in the Prospectus.

ORGANIC GROWTH STRATEGY
The Manager will continue to actively market the remaining spaces in the buildings through:-

> Maintaining high occupancy levels and maximizing tenant retention
> Leasing opportunities
> Asset enhancements
> Minimizing property operating expenses
> Superior customer service
> Strong alliances with real estate practitioners

ACQUISITION STRATEGY
The Manager is pleased to report that on 2 December 2005, Axis-REIT announced the acquisitions of two properties to its portfolio. The 
properties are Kompleks Kemajuan purchased for a consideration of RM29,000,000 and Kayangan Depot purchased for a 
consideration of RM16,100,000.

Information on Kompleks Kemajuan 
Kompleks Kemajuan is a five (5) storey office/showroom cum warehouse complex with basement car park situated at No. 2, Jalan 
19/1B, 46300 Petaling Jaya, Selangor and sited on a leasehold land held under PN 3940, Lot 24, Town of Petaling Jaya, District of 
Petaling, Selangor with a land area of 87,972 sq. ft.. The tenure of the lease is ninety-nine (99) years expiring on 4 July 2065. 
Kompleks Kemajuan is approximately twelve (12) years old.  It has a gross built up area of 318,614 sq. ft. (include basement car 
park), net lettable area of 201,414 sq. ft. and has one hundred and sixty-eight (168) car park bays. The category of land use is 
industrial.  Currently, Kompleks Kemajuan has an occupancy rate of 72.8%. The current average gross rental rate for the tenanted 
office space is approximately RM2.20 per square feet ("sq. ft") per month and for the tenanted warehouse space is approximately 
RM1.39 per sq. ft per month.  

Basis of The Kompleks Kemajuan Purchase Price
The purchase consideration for Kompleks Kemajuan was arrived at based on a willing-buyer, willing-seller basis after taking into 
account the market value of Kompleks Kemajuan of RM36.2 million as appraised by M/s C H Williams Talhar & Wong Sdn Bhd, an 
independent firm of registered valuers in its valuation report dated 22 November 2005. The valuation of RM36.2 million was arrived 
at using a combination of comparison and investment methods of valuation.

Source of Funding
The acquisition of Kompleks Kemajuan was funded by a combination of bank borrowings and internally generated funds.   

Completion of Purchase
The purchase was completed on the 16 December 2005 and Axis-REIT took possession of the property on that date.

Information on Kayangan Depot
Kayangan Depot is a three (3) storey office cum warehouse complex with one hundred and thirteen (113) car park bays situated at 
No. 3, Jalan 15/16, Section 15, 40200 Shah Alam, Selangor and sited on a leasehold land held under H.S.(D) 22390, P.T. 61, 
Section 15, Town of Shah Alam, District of Petaling, Selangor with a land area of 132,697 sq. ft..  The tenure of the lease is ninety-
nine (99) years expiring on 12 January 2086. Kayangan Depot is approximately thirteen and a half (13.5) years old.  It has a gross 
built up area of 169,194 sq. ft. and net lettable area of 162,206 sq. ft.. The category of land use is industrial. Currently, Kayangan 
Depot has an occupancy rate of 100%. The current average gross rental rate for the tenanted office space is approximately 
RM0.97 per sq. ft per month and for the tenanted warehouse space is approximately RM0.89 per sq. ft per month.

Basis of the Kayangan Depot Purchase Price
The purchase consideration for Kayangan Depot was arrived at based on a willing-buyer, willing-seller basis after taking into 
account the market value of Kayangan Depot of RM18.2 million as appraised by M/s C H Williams Talhar & Wong Sdn Bhd, an 
independent firm of registered valuers in its valuation report dated 22 November 2005.  The valuation of RM18.2 million was arrived 
at using a combination of comparison and investment methods of valuation.

Source of Funding
The proposed acquisition of Kayangan Depot will be funded by a combination of bank borrowings and internally generated funds.
 
Completion of Purchase
The completion of the purchase is anticipated to be in the 2nd Quarter 2006 as the Manager is awaiting approval from State 
authority for the transfer of title.
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FUTURE ACQUISITIONS
In the evaluation of future acquisition opportunities, the Manager will continue to focus on the following investment criteria:

> Yield Enhancement opportunities
> Evaluation of occupancy and tenant characteristics
> Superior location
> Value add opportunities
> Length of land lease (in the case of leasehold properties)
> Building and facility specifications

INVESTMENTS OF THE TRUST
Total investments for the period ended 31 December 2005 was RM336,550,000

GEARING
DEBT FACILITIES
Axis-REIT has a RM95,000,000 secured facility comprising of a RM40,000,000 Revolving Credit and a RM55,000,000 Overdraft Facility.

The Debt is short term in nature with a 12 month fixed rate for the Revolving Credit and a floating rate for the Overdraft.

As at 31 December 2005, Axis-REIT has only drawn down RM40,000,000 of the Revolving Credit Facility. It will proceed to draw down 
approximately RM15,000,000 of the Overdraft Facility in April 2006 to fund the purchase of Kayangan Depot.

GEARING CAPACITY
As of 31 December 2005, Axis-REIT had a gearing ratio (external borrowings to total assets) of 11.77%, and had available credit 
facilities of RM55,000,000.There is capacity to borrow an additional RM23,870,000 before reaching the 35% limit permitted under the 
REIT Guidelines.

On the purchase of Kayangan Depot scheduled for 2nd quarter 2006 the gearing will rise to 15.50% and there will be an unutilized 
credit facilities of RM40,000,000 together with an additional capacity to borrow RM30,240,000.

The Manager will be utilising the available credit facilities to further pursue its acquisition strategy prior to a Unit issue. 

UNITS IN ISSUE
On 15 June 2005, 1,000 promoter units were issued and subscribed by the Manager on the date of registration of the Deed that 
constitutes the Trust, with Securities Commission. The Manager had on the day of listing disposed off the 1,000 promoter units in 
compliance with the SC Guidelines on REITs. On 3 August 2005, a total of 205,901,000 units were in issue when Axis-REIT was listed 
on the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

81,400,000 units were allocated to Institutional and selected investors at a price of RM1.38 per Unit and 17,000,000 units were offered 
to the public at a price of RM1.25 per Unit.

There were no further changes to the number of units in issue of Axis-REIT during the Period. 

REVALUATIONS
The original portfolio of properties was valued on 24 June 2005 at a combined value of RM296,000,000. New acquisitions, Kompleks 
Kemajuan and Kayangan Depot were valued on 22 November 2005 for a total value of RM54,400,000. As they were purchased below 
the valuations obtained, a valuation reserve for these two purchases at RM8,992,446 will be added to the Net Asset Value (NAV) as and 
when they are concluded.

Axis-REIT will undertake revaluations of all properties every financial year to reflect the fair values of the properties of the Fund.
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At valuation:
Real Estate

- Commercial & Office buildings and Warehouse
Axis Plaza
Axis Business Park
Crystal Plaza
Menara Axis
Infinite Centre
Kompleks Kemajuan

At fair value:
Deposits with licensed banks

%

7.73
27.63
19.31
23.77
9.51

10.76

98.71

1.29

100.00

RM '000

26,000
93,000
65,000
80,000
32,000
36,200

332,200

4,350

336,550



NET ASSET VALUE (“NAV”) OF AXIS-REIT
At the time of listing the NAV of Axis-REIT was RM1.315. In line with the listing requirements the NAV has been posted weekly with 
Bursa Malaysia and published on their website.

With the completion of the acquisition of Kompleks Kemajuan on 16 December 2005, the NAV rose to close at RM1.349 on 31 
December 2005. This was a result of a revaluation reserve of RM7,007,762 being transferred to the revaluation reserve account as a 
result of the property being purchased at a discount to valuation.

PROSPECTS
All the properties in the original portfolio of Axis-REIT which are primarily located in Petaling Jaya and Shah Alam will continue to enjoy 
a high level of occupancy and rising rentals upon renewal due to the strength of the location and tightening supply of office and office / 
Industrial spaces in these locations.

For the newly acquired properties of Kompleks Kemajuan and Kayangan Depot the Manager will be allocating a budget of 
RM2,000,000 for building enhancements, which is scheduled to be completed in 2006. Funding for the enhancements will be via 
working capital  and is not expected to affect the performance of Axis-REIT for 2006.

This will enable the properties to be actively marketed with a view to fill up the vacant spaces at stronger rentals resulting in better 
returns for Unitholders.

In addition the Manager will be actively pursuing acquisitions in 2006 that would further enhance the portfolio of Axis-REIT, and 
enhance distributions to Unitholders, as well as provide diversity in the property portfolio.

LEASE EXPIRY (Including Kompleks Kemajuan & Kayangan Depot)
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TRAINING ATTENDED BY DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGER
For the year 2005, the following Directors have attended the Training programs/ Seminars listed below: 

1. Mandatory Accreditation Program (MAP) - 15-16 November 2005
> George Stewart LaBrooy
> Dato' Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah
> Khoo Cheang Ee

2. Strategic Corporate Planning for Company Directors and Senior Management - 5 April 2005
> Dato' Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi

3. Bond Markets (Financing, Investment, Benefits & Risks) Latest Bond Products- 2 March 2005
> Dato Mohamed Salleh bin Bajuri

4.  REITs - Broadening Investment Opportunities in Malaysia - 2 June 2005
> George Stewart Labrooy
> Khoo Cheang Ee

5. REIT Conference Kuala Lumpur  21-22 September 2005
> George Stewart LaBrooy

6. Malaysia Securitization  & Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) Conference - 25-26 October 2005
> George Stewart LaBrooy

7. Securitization  World Asia 2005 - Singapore - 29 November - 1 December 2005
> George Stewart LaBrooy

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
Before the financial statements of Axis-REIT were made out, the Manager took reasonable steps to ascertain that: 

i) there are no bad debts to be written off and no provision need be made for doubtful debts, and
ii) All current assets have been stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

At the date of this report, the Manager is not aware of any circumstances:
i) that would render it necessary to write off any bad debts, or provide for any doubtful debts, or
ii) that would render the value attributed to the current assets in Axis-REIT financial statements misleading, or
iii) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of Axis-REIT misleading 

or inappropriate, or
iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, that would render any amount stated in the financial 

statements of Axis-REIT misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:
i) any charge on the assets of Axis-REIT that has arisen since the end of the financial period and which secures the liabilities of 

any other person, or
ii) any contingent liability in respect of Axis-REIT that has arisen since the end of the financial period.

No contingent liability or other liability of Axis-REIT has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable within the period of 
twelve months after the end of the financial period which, in the opinion of the Manager, will or may substantially affect the ability of 
Axis-REIT to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

As of the date of this report there was no material contract entered into between the Trustees and the Directors and / or major 
shareholders of the Manager.

In the opinion of the Manager, the results of the operations of Axis-REIT for the financial period ended 31 December 2005 have not 
been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor has any such item, transaction or 
event occurred in the interval between the end of that financial period and the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Messrs KPMG, have indicated their willingness to accept appointment.

For and on behalf of the Manager, Axis REIT Managers Berhad, signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Kuala Lumpur,

Date: 21 February 2006
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GEORGE STEWART LABROOY
Executive Director

STEPHEN TEW PENG HWEE
Director



Calendar of Events
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1. Soft Launch of Menara Axis 
17 August 2004

Soft launch held in conjunction 
with the visit of Fuji Photo Film 
Co Ltd Japan President & CEO, 
Mr Shigetaka Komori and the 
official opening of their new 
Showroom and Corporate HQ 
at Menara Axis.

Housing and Local 
Government Minister, Datuk 
Seri Ong Ka Ting signs the 
plaque in conjunction with 
the official opening of 
Menara Axis.

The Underwriting Ceremony 
between Axis REIT 
Managers Berhad, 
Asseambankers and Mayban 
Securities Sdn Bhd.

2. Official launch of Menara Axis 
28 October 2004

The directors of the Axis 
Group representing the 
Vendors enter into a Sale & 
Purchase Agreement with 
OSK Trustees Berhad, 
setting the stage for the 
listing of Axis-REIT.

4. Sale & Purchase Agreement between
Vendors & Trustees  
17 June 2005

The first official meeting of 
the Board of Directors of 
Axis REIT Managers Bhd.

3. Axis REIT Managers Bhd Board meets
for the first time  
22 March 2005

5. Underwriting Ceremony  
20 June 2005

About 300 analysts, fund 
managers and guests 
attended the Prospectus 
Launch of Malaysia's first 
Real Estate Investment Trust.

Axis-REIT IPO Balloting of 
the Public Offer commences; 
Institutional Offer was 
18.36.%  & the Public Offer 
was 3.72% oversubscribed.

Axis-REIT Commences 
Trading on the Bursa 
Malaysia Berhad; finishing the 
day with a premium of 43 sen 
over the IPO price of RM 1.25 
per unit.

Axis-REIT announces the 
Unaudited Financial Results 
for the period 30 September 
2005 and the acquisition of 
two properties to be injected 
in the REIT.

Axis-REIT announces the 
Unaudited Financial Results 
for the period end December 
2005 and Distribution of 
Income per Unit of 4.70 sen 
for the period. 

6. Launch of the Axis-REIT Prospectus
30 June 2005

7. Balloting 
19 August 2005 

8. Axis-REIT Commences Trading
3 August 2005 

9. Analysts Briefing on the  3rd Quarter Results
& New Acquisitions  
5 December 2005

10. Analysts Briefing on the 31 December 2005 
Unaudited Results & Income Distribution  
24 January 2006



Soft launch held in conjunction 
with the visit of Fuji Photo Film 
Co Ltd Japan President & CEO, 
Mr Shigetaka Komori and the 
official opening of their new 
Showroom and Corporate HQ 
at Menara Axis.

Housing and Local 
Government Minister, Datuk 
Seri Ong Ka Ting signs the 
plaque in conjunction with 
the official opening of 
Menara Axis.

The Underwriting Ceremony 
between Axis REIT 
Managers Berhad, 
Asseambankers and Mayban 
Securities Sdn Bhd.

The directors of the Axis 
Group representing the 
Vendors enter into a Sale & 
Purchase Agreement with 
OSK Trustees Berhad, 
setting the stage for the 
listing of Axis-REIT.

The first official meeting of 
the Board of Directors of 
Axis REIT Managers Bhd.

About 300 analysts, fund 
managers and guests 
attended the Prospectus 
Launch of Malaysia's first 
Real Estate Investment Trust.

Axis-REIT IPO Balloting of 
the Public Offer commences; 
Institutional Offer was 
18.36.%  & the Public Offer 
was 3.72% oversubscribed.

Axis-REIT Commences 
Trading on the Bursa 
Malaysia Berhad; finishing the 
day with a premium of 43 sen 
over the IPO price of RM 1.25 
per unit.

Axis-REIT announces the 
Unaudited Financial Results 
for the period 30 September 
2005 and the acquisition of 
two properties to be injected 
in the REIT.

Axis-REIT announces the 
Unaudited Financial Results 
for the period end December 
2005 and Distribution of 
Income per Unit of 4.70 sen 
for the period. 

Promoting Malaysia's First REIT
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MENARA AXIS  

No 2, Jalan 51A/223  

46100 Petaling Jaya  

Selangor D.E.

AXIS BUSINESS PARK

No 10, Jalan Bersatu 13/4 

46200 Petaling Jaya  

Selangor D.E. 

AXIS PLAZA

Lot 5, Jalan Penyair U1/44  

Off Jalan Glenmarie  

Temasya Industrial Park, Batu Tiga  

40150 Shah Alam, Selangor D.E.

CRYSTAL PLAZA 

No 4, Jalan 51A/223 

46100 Petaling Jaya 

Selangor D.E.

INFINITE CENTRE 

Lot 1, Jalan 13/6 

46200 Petaling Jaya 

Selangor D.E. 

KOMPLEKS KEMAJUAN 

Lot 24, Jalan 19/1 

46300 Petaling Jaya 

Selangor D.E. 

KAYANGAN DEPOT

(Acquisition will only be completed

in 2nd quarter 2006)

No 3, Jalan 15/16

Lot PT 16, Section 15

40200 Shah Alam, Selangor D.E.

Portfolio At A Glance
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Menara Axis is the newest building in the Axis-REIT portfolio being completed in 2004. Featuring a unique and distinctive moorish 
design, the building has well defined and highly efficient floor spaces with the possibility of flexible operating hours by tenants. To date 
it remains one of Petaling Jaya's top office choices for Multinationals.

Menara Axis is strategically located within the established industrial and commercial area of Section 51A, Petaling Jaya. Prominent 
landmarks within the immediate vicinity include Crystal Plaza, Armada Hotel, PJ Hilton, Wisma MCIS Zurich, Stamford College and 
Menara PKNS. 

Menara Axis enjoys excellent accessibility from Kuala Lumpur city centre as well from Subang Jaya and Shah Alam via the Federal 
Highway or alternatively, via Lebuhraya Damansara-Puchong and Lebuhraya SPRINT. It has further benefited from the Asia Jaya Putra 
LRT station as well as the main bus stop along the Federal Highway, both of which are located about 100 metres away. 

Owing to its strategic location, Menara Axis has attracted major tenants of the service sectors such as AIA, Fuji Photo Film (M) Sdn Bhd 
and Sportathlon which operates Fitness First.

" Menara Axis is a unique boutique office building where tenants enjoy a real presence in 
the building through signage offerings as well as showrooms on the ground floor."

PROPERTY
MENARA AXIS

ADDRESS
No 2 Jalan 51A/223  
46100 Petaling Jaya  
Selangor D.E. 

CATEGORY
Office

TITLE
Commercial Leasehold expiring  
29th August 2065

AGE OF BUILDING
Approx 1 year 

NET LETTABLE AREA
174,025 sq ft

PURCHASE PRICE
RM 71,400,000

APPRAISED VALUE
RM 80,000,000 

GROSS REVENUE *
RM 3,617,181 

AVERAGE OCCUPANCY **
100% 

NUMBER OF TENANTS **
13 

MAJOR TENANTS
Fuji Photo Film (M) Sdn Bhd  
American International Assurance 
Co Ltd  
Sportathlon (M) Sdn Bhd  
Philips Malaysia Sdn Bhd  
DHL Worldwide Express Sdn Bhd 

* For the period 3 August 2005 - 31 December 2005   
** As at 31 December 2005   
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Property Portfolio - Crystal Plaza
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PROPERTY
CRYSTAL PLAZA

ADDRESS
No 4 Jalan 51A/223 
46100 Petaling Jaya 
Selangor D.E. . 

CATEGORY
Office

TITLE
Commercial Leasehold Expiring 
9th June 2059 

AGE OF BUILDING
About 9 years  

NET LETTABLE AREA
200,970 sq ft 

PURCHASE PRICE
RM 56,400,000 

APPRAISED VALUE
RM 65,000,000 

GROSS REVENUE *
RM 3,198,588  

AVERAGE OCCUPANCY **
100% 

NUMBER OF TENANTS **
9 

MAJOR TENANTS
Tenaga Nasional Bhd 
Scope International (M) Sdn Bhd 
UCI Education Sdn Bhd 
Cosmopoint Sdn Bhd 
Asia Training Sdn Bhd  

* For the period 3 August 2005 - 31 December 2005   
** As at 31 December 2005   

Located next door to Menara Axis the building enjoys the same convenience for transport and connectivity. In addition the building is 
designed with high tension electrical supply system with large power reserves so essential to data and recovery centres. 

Built with one of the highest floor plate efficiency of all the buildings in the Axis-REIT portfolio, its tenants have taken advantage of the 
efficient design of the building to maximize their office layouts.

" Crystal Plaza provides tenants with a large floor plate design featuring a twin lobby enabling 
unprecedented possibilities for highly efficient office layouts and lower overall real rents."
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Property Portfolio - Crystal Plaza

Securing Your Tomorrows' Today | 17

PROPERTY
CRYSTAL PLAZA

ADDRESS
No 4 Jalan 51A/223 
46100 Petaling Jaya 
Selangor D.E. . 

CATEGORY
Office

TITLE
Commercial Leasehold Expiring 
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About 9 years  
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100% 
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* For the period 3 August 2005 - 31 December 2005   
** As at 31 December 2005   

Located next door to Menara Axis the building enjoys the same convenience for transport and connectivity. In addition the building is 
designed with high tension electrical supply system with large power reserves so essential to data and recovery centres. 

Built with one of the highest floor plate efficiency of all the buildings in the Axis-REIT portfolio, its tenants have taken advantage of the 
efficient design of the building to maximize their office layouts.

" Crystal Plaza provides tenants with a large floor plate design featuring a twin lobby enabling 
unprecedented possibilities for highly efficient office layouts and lower overall real rents."
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Property Portfolio - Axis Business Park
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Axis Business Park is strategically located in the centre of Petaling Jaya's Section 13 industrial area. Axis Business Park is 
predominantly surrounded by industrial premises and purpose built office/industrial buildings. Some of the notable office buildings in 
the vicinity include Colgate Palmolive, Kompakar, Panasonic, Dutch Baby Milk Industries, Mulpha International, Tan Chong Motor and 
F&N Dairies. 

Axis Business Park features a unique combination of office and warehousing/ distribution centres in the heart of Petaling Jaya. Its 
design has attracted companies in the marketing, distribution and service industries such as Fuji Xerox, Zuellig Pharma, Pharmvision, 
Honeywell Engineering and Johnson & Johnson to locate in the complex.

Axis Business Park is accessible from Kuala Lumpur city centre via the Federal Highway, LDP or Lebuhraya SPRINT with alternative 
roads through Jalan Damansara, Jalan Dato Abu Bakar and Jalan 12/18.

" Axis Business Park has redefined the way office / industrial space should be
presented for prospective tenants."

PROPERTY
AXIS BUSINESS PARK

ADDRESS
No 10, Jalan Bersatu 13/4 
46200 Petaling Jaya  
Selangor D.E. 

CATEGORY
Office / Warehouse 

TITLE
Industrial Leasehold Expiring 
13th January 2060 

AGE OF BUILDING
2-28 years 

NET LETTABLE AREA
340,970 sq ft 

PURCHASE PRICE
RM 84,600,000

APPRAISED VALUE
RM 93,000,000 

GROSS REVENUE *
RM 4,207,625

AVERAGE OCCUPANCY **
100% 

NUMBER OF TENANTS **
11 

MAJOR TENANTS
Fuji Xerox Asia Pacific Pte Ltd 
Zuellig Pharma Sdn Bhd 
Honeywell Engineering Sdn Bhd 
Johnson & Johnson (M) Sdn Bhd 
Lim Kim Hai Electric (M) Sdn Bhd 

* For the period 3 August 2005 - 31 December 2005   
** As at 31 December 2005   

FEDERAL HIGHWAY

JLN. PENYAIR

JLN. SYAIR

JA
LA

N
 S

U
N

G
A

I B
U

LO
H

JALAN KE R
JA

YA

JL
N

. 
H

A
K

IM

JL
N

.
K

O
N

TR
A

K
TO

R

PERSIARAN KERJAYA

LEB
U

H
R

AYA
U

TA
R

A
S

ELA
TA

N

SUBANG
HI-TECH

BATU TIGA
TOLL PLAZA

PE
RS

IA
R

A
N

S
U

K
A

N

JL
N

 1
3/

43

Property Portfolio - Axis Plaza
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Axis Plaza is strategically located along the Federal Highway within an industrial scheme known as Temasya Industrial Park, which is 
near the prominent and established industrial development of Glenmarie Industrial Park.

It enjoys a high visibility along the Federal Highway, where major tenants have taken advantage to display their company logos. The 
building features a high level of finishes with large highly efficient floor plates, and served by three passenger and two goods lifts.

Properties in the immediate vicinity comprise mainly purpose-built factories, warehouses and terraced factories. Prominent industrial 
premises include Blondal, BMW, Toshiba, National Panasonic, Shah Alam Stadium, Glenmarie Golf and Country Club and Holiday Inn 
Glenmarie Resort. 

Access to Axis Plaza is easily available from the Federal Highway, via the NKVE, KESAS or Sungei Buloh expressway. 

" A landmark building featuring high-quality building finishes, and intelligent design that 
creates an excellent environment for marketing and distribution companies to operate."

PROPERTY
AXIS PLAZA

ADDRESS
Lot 5, Jalan Penyair U 1/44  
Off Jalan Glenmarie  
Temasya Industrial Park,
Batu Tiga  40150 Shah Alam,
Selangor D.E.  

CATEGORY
Office / Warehouse

TITLE
Freehold  

AGE OF BUILDING
About 7 years    

NET LETTABLE AREA
118,765 sq ft  

PURCHASE PRICE
RM 22,500,000

APPRAISED VALUE
RM 26,000,000  

GROSS REVENUE *
RM 1,214,088

AVERAGE OCCUPANCY **
93.4% 

NUMBER OF TENANTS **
6  

MAJOR TENANTS
Ricoh (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.  
Electrolux Home Appliances S/B  
CSE Automotive Technologies S/B  
Electrolux Commercial Products S/B  
City-Link Express Sdn. Bhd.  
EMS Asia Group Sdn. Bhd.

* For the period 3 August 2005 - 31 December 2005   
** As at 31 December 2005   
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Property Portfolio - Axis Plaza
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Axis Plaza is strategically located along the Federal Highway within an industrial scheme known as Temasya Industrial Park, which is 
near the prominent and established industrial development of Glenmarie Industrial Park.

It enjoys a high visibility along the Federal Highway, where major tenants have taken advantage to display their company logos. The 
building features a high level of finishes with large highly efficient floor plates, and served by three passenger and two goods lifts.

Properties in the immediate vicinity comprise mainly purpose-built factories, warehouses and terraced factories. Prominent industrial 
premises include Blondal, BMW, Toshiba, National Panasonic, Shah Alam Stadium, Glenmarie Golf and Country Club and Holiday Inn 
Glenmarie Resort. 

Access to Axis Plaza is easily available from the Federal Highway, via the NKVE, KESAS or Sungei Buloh expressway. 

" A landmark building featuring high-quality building finishes, and intelligent design that 
creates an excellent environment for marketing and distribution companies to operate."

PROPERTY
AXIS PLAZA

ADDRESS
Lot 5, Jalan Penyair U 1/44  
Off Jalan Glenmarie  
Temasya Industrial Park,
Batu Tiga  40150 Shah Alam,
Selangor D.E.  

CATEGORY
Office / Warehouse

TITLE
Freehold  

AGE OF BUILDING
About 7 years    

NET LETTABLE AREA
118,765 sq ft  

PURCHASE PRICE
RM 22,500,000

APPRAISED VALUE
RM 26,000,000  

GROSS REVENUE *
RM 1,214,088

AVERAGE OCCUPANCY **
93.4% 

NUMBER OF TENANTS **
6  

MAJOR TENANTS
Ricoh (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.  
Electrolux Home Appliances S/B  
CSE Automotive Technologies S/B  
Electrolux Commercial Products S/B  
City-Link Express Sdn. Bhd.  
EMS Asia Group Sdn. Bhd.

* For the period 3 August 2005 - 31 December 2005   
** As at 31 December 2005   
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Infinite Centre is strategically located in Petaling Jaya's Section 13 industrial hub, which provides a central location for its 
tenants' distribution network. 

Properties within the immediate vicinity comprise are mainly purpose-built detached factories and individually designed 
industrial properties such as the premises of Dutch Lady Milk Industries (M) Sdn Bhd, Robert Bosch, OSIM, UTAR College and 
Sin Chew Jit Poh. 

Infinite Centre is accessible from the Kuala Lumpur city centre via Federal Highway, Lebuhraya SPRINT, LDP or alternatively, 
via Jalan Damansara. 

" A convenient combination of office, warehousing and distribution activities
can now be housed in yet another property in the Axis-REIT portfolio."

PROPERTY
INFINITE CENTRE

ADDRESS
Lot 1 Jalan 13/6 
46200 Petaling Jaya 
Selangor D.E.

CATEGORY
Office / Warehouse 

TITLE
Industrial Leasehold expiring 
24th March 2065 

AGE OF BUILDING
18 years 

NET LETTABLE AREA
149,888 sq ft 

PURCHASE PRICE
RM 25,450,000

APPRAISED VALUE
RM 32,000,000

GROSS REVENUE *
RM 1,377,025 

AVERAGE OCCUPANCY **
100%

NUMBER OF TENANTS **
12  

MAJOR TENANTS
Pharmaniaga Marketing Sdn Bhd 
Konica Minolta Business Solutions 
FJ Benjamin 
C Melchers Gmbh & Co 
Crystal Edge Sdn Bhd  

* For the period 3 August 2005 - 31 December 2005   
** As at 31 December 2005   
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Property Portfolio - Kompleks Kemajuan
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Kompleks Kemajuan is strategically located within the established industrial and commercial area of Section 19, Petaling Jaya. 
Prominent landmarks within the immediate vicinity include UMW Toyota Sales, Service and Spares Centre, Wisma Academy, 
Wisma KT, Menara Merais and British American Tobacco.

Kompleks Kemajuan enjoys excellent accessibility from Kuala Lumpur City Centre as well as from Subang Jaya and Shah Alam 
via the Federal Highway, or alternatively, via Lebuhraya Damansara-Puchong and Lebuhraya SPRINT. It has further benefited 
from the Asia Jaya Putra LRT shuttle bus service which stops 100 meters from the property. 

Owing to its strategic location, Kompleks Kemajuan has attracted major tenants of the service sectors such as Goureca Tiling, 
Hong Leong Marketing, WOFS, EP2M and Salwan Corporation.

" A unique combination of professional warehousing activities, showroom and office space in a 
single offering makes this building unique amongst similar tenantable spaces in Petaling Jaya."

PROPERTY
KOMPLEKS KEMAJUAN

ADDRESS
Lot 24, Jalan 19/1 
46300 Petaling Jaya 
Selangor D.E. 

CATEGORY
Office / Warehouse

TITLE
Industrial Leasehold Expiring 
4th July 2065  

AGE OF BUILDING
About 13 years    

NET LETTABLE AREA
201,972 sq ft 

PURCHASE PRICE
RM29,000,000

APPRAISED VALUE
RM 36,200,000 

GROSS REVENUE *
RM 146,163 

AVERAGE OCCUPANCY **
72.8% 

NUMBER OF TENANTS **
18   

MAJOR TENANTS
Goucerea Marketing Sdn Bhd 
Hong Leong Marketing Co Bhd 
Salwan Corporation Bhd 
WOFS.COM Sdn Bhd 
EP2m Services Sdn Bhd 
Scanart Data System (M) Sdn Bhd 
Intranet Sdn Bhd 

* For the period 16 December 2005 - 31 December 2005   
** As at 31 December 2005   
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Kayangan Depot is strategically located within the established industrial and commercial area of Section 15 Shah Alam. Prominent 
landmarks within the immediate vicinity include Goodyear, Daihatsu Headquarters, SumiPuteh Steel centre and Nylex (M) Sdn Bhd.

It features a combination of showrooms, offices as well as presented warehouse space for the prospective tenants. As a result, it has 
attracted companies such as Maxis, Naza Kia as well as Nineteen-O-One to locate their operations there.

Kayangan Depot enjoys excellent accessibility from Kuala Lumpur, Petaling Jaya, Subang Jaya, Port Klang and Klang via the Federal 
Highway or alternatively, via KESAS or the NKVE. It has further benefited from its very close access to the Federal Highway and the 
KESAS highway as well as its very prominent location next to the Goodyear roundabout. 

" Featuring large warehousing and distribution facilities so close to the major road 
networks, places Kayangan Depot in an excellent position to attract companies, which want 

visibility and convenience for their operations."

PROPERTY
KAYANGAN DEPOT

ADDRESS
No 3, Jalan 15/16,
Lot PT 16, Section 15, 
40200 Shah Alam,
Selangor D.E.

CATEGORY
Industrial 

TITLE
Industrial Leasehold Expiring 
12th January 2086 

AGE OF BUILDING
About 13 years 

NET LETTABLE AREA
162,206 sq ft  

PURCHASE PRICE
RM 16,100,000 

APPRAISED VALUE
RM 18,200,000 

AVERAGE OCCUPANCY **
100%

NUMBER OF TENANTS **
9

MAJOR TENANTS
Maxis Mobile 
Emitherm 
Naza Kia 
Nineteen -O-One  

** As at 31 December 2005
(Note: Acquisition will only be completed in 2nd quarter 2006)   
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Property Report

MALAYSIAN ECONOMY
The Malaysian economy showed sustained growth during 2005 with growth rates of 5.8%, 4.4% and 5.3% recorded for the first, 
second and third quarters of the year respectively. Overall growth during the first nine months of the year was 5.3%. The 
services sector has been and will continue to be the major performer within the overall economy. 

Bank Negara Malaysia (BNM) is expected to gradually continue to increase interest rates during the year, according to 
government policy. It is generally felt that a gradual increase in interest rates would prove positive for the local economy as it 
would decrease the outflow of foreign funds and would at the same time also act to counter inflation rates since it would 
encourage savings. In terms of lending rates, commercial banks and finance companies have increased base-lending rates 
(BLR) accordingly by 25 to 30 basis points after the increase in BNM's Overnight Policy Rate. As at the end of December, the 
average BLRs for commercial banks and finance companies were at 6.20% and 7.03% respectively.  

Barring any major slowdown in the US economy, the Malaysian economy is expected to perform well during the course of the 
year and growth is expected to be at a sustainable rate. The Malaysian Institute of Economic Research (MIER) has projected a 
growth of 5.3% in Gross Domestic Product (GDP) for the period of 2005, and a further growth of 5.5% for 2006. 
 

PROPERTY MARKET OUTLOOK
OFFICE SECTOR
The office market is expected to benefit from the positive economic outlook, as new businesses and expansions of the existing ones would take place. 
Together with the country's political stability, it will boost business confidence amongst the multinational companies and contribute to the growth of 
investment that would lead to higher requirements for office space. 

The government is promoting the services sector as a new engine of growth for the country's economy. Initiatives have been taken to promote Malaysia 
as a global and regional hub for several niche areas such as financial services, communication technology and multimedia. This would encourage the 
growth of the service sector as a whole, which will in turn encourage the demand for office space.   

Prime grade office buildings in central locations are expected to benefit the most from the growing market. Therefore, in an established location like 
Petaling Jaya, the market is expected to remain active and demand is expected to remain favourable. 

According to NAPIC, the supply of office space in Petaling Jaya stood at approximately 8.644 million sq. ft. in 3Q05, which was similar to 3Q04. The 
average occupancy was at 80.4%, up from 79.5% in 3Q04. Thus, there was a drop in the vacant office space from 1.775 million sq. ft. in 3Q04 to 1.692 
million sq. ft. in 3Q05. 

The incoming supply of office space in Petaling Jaya consists of approximately 67,242 sq. ft. under construction and another 324,575 sq. ft. in the 
planning stage. Petaling Jaya has lately been in the limelight with its new office developments that include Jaya 33, Jaya 1, 3 2 Square, 8 Avenue and 
PJ8. In the northern part of Petaling Jaya, new developments include The One Avenue @ Damansara near Bandar Utama and Petaling Jaya Trade Centre 
(PJTC) in Damansara Perdana. Response to the launches is reported to be encouraging. 

The current asking rental rates of office space in Petaling Jaya range from RM2.50 to RM3.50 per sq. ft. An upward movement in the rental rates is 
expected during the year due to encouraging levels of demand and limited supply of space, particularly prime grade purpose-built offices. REITs are 
expected to spearhead activities in the office market. More REITs may be set up, which will encourage the emergence of investment grade office 
buildings, particularly in the Klang Valley. 

OFFICE-WAREHOUSE SECTOR
Selangor has long been established as the centre for industrial activities of the country. The state has the highest number of industrial properties in the 
country. There were 31,341 units of industrial properties as at 3Q05, accounting for 36.75% of the country's stock. Another 3,897 units were being 
constructed, accounting for 50.24% of the total industrial properties under construction in the country. 

Selangor has the highest number of approved manufacturing project establishments in the country. Manufacturing activities in the state are generally on 
the rise, as indicated by the increasing number of approved manufacturing establishments. In 2004, a total of 335 establishments were approved, with a 
total proposed investment of RM6,050.30 million. From year 2000 to 2004, Selangor accounted for about 30% of the total number of establishments 
approved for the country.

It is expected that the industrial market in Selangor will continue to thrive. Besides manufacturing, Selangor is also actively pursuing other types of 
specialised industries, such as biotechnology, information technology, as well as distribution hub. The country's economic growth will be one of the major 
determinants of the industrial sector, which will in turn affect the demand for industrial properties.

Popular industrial areas in Selangor include Petaling Jaya and Shah Alam. Their strategic locations, easy access and the availability of supporting 
facilities/infrastructure help to boost the market and attract multinational companies to set up their operations here. Demand for industrial properties in 
these areas has been good and stable, notwithstanding the fact that rental rates and selling prices are amongst the highest in Selangor. 

The government is promoting Malaysia as a regional centre for the procurement and distribution of goods, including raw materials, components and 
finished products. It is expected that other than the conventional industrial properties or factories, warehouses would see increasing demand as a result 
of the growing need for storage and distribution centres by local and international companies. 

It is noted that more companies are requiring warehouses that come with office space under one roof. Office-cum-warehouses are particularly practical 
for companies involved in manufacturing and distribution and import/export of goods, where their primary requirement is a large storage capacity and 
office space as secondary requirement. This type of property is also useful for multinational companies to occupy as their operation centres that serve the 
local market. The cost of renting office space within warehouses is lower than renting in office buildings. The average monthly rental rate of an office-cum-
warehouse is generally less than RM2.50 per sq. ft.    

Preference would be given to properties located in central areas, which have good road networks and easy access to Kuala Lumpur International Airport 
and Port Klang, which would make the movement of stock convenient and efficient. Proximity to commercial and financial centres would also be prime 
consideration. With the availability of prerequisite infrastructure, office-cum-warehouses in Petaling Jaya and Shah Alam would benefit from a healthy 
industrial sector and growing distribution market, and would thus remain popular and continue commanding attractive rental rates as well as selling 
prices.

Prepared by
Colliers, Jordan Lee & Jaffar Sdn Bhd

COLLIERS, JORDAN LEE
& JAAFAR SDN. BHD.
(59901-U)(VE(1)0063)

Level 6, Block G North,
Pusat Bandar Damansara,
Damansara Heights,
50450 Kuala Lumpur.
Tel No : 03-20955811 (10 lines)
Fax No : 03-20955843
E-mail : cjij@tm.net.my
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Kayangan Depot is strategically located within the established industrial and commercial area of Section 15 Shah Alam. Prominent 
landmarks within the immediate vicinity include Goodyear, Daihatsu Headquarters, SumiPuteh Steel centre and Nylex (M) Sdn Bhd.

It features a combination of showrooms, offices as well as presented warehouse space for the prospective tenants. As a result, it has 
attracted companies such as Maxis, Naza Kia as well as Nineteen-O-One to locate their operations there.

Kayangan Depot enjoys excellent accessibility from Kuala Lumpur, Petaling Jaya, Subang Jaya, Port Klang and Klang via the Federal 
Highway or alternatively, via KESAS or the NKVE. It has further benefited from its very close access to the Federal Highway and the 
KESAS highway as well as its very prominent location next to the Goodyear roundabout. 

" Featuring large warehousing and distribution facilities so close to the major road 
networks, places Kayangan Depot in an excellent position to attract companies, which want 

visibility and convenience for their operations."

PROPERTY
KAYANGAN DEPOT

ADDRESS
No 3, Jalan 15/16,
Lot PT 16, Section 15, 
40200 Shah Alam,
Selangor D.E.

CATEGORY
Industrial 

TITLE
Industrial Leasehold Expiring 
12th January 2086 

AGE OF BUILDING
About 13 years 

NET LETTABLE AREA
162,206 sq ft  

PURCHASE PRICE
RM 16,100,000 

APPRAISED VALUE
RM 18,200,000 

AVERAGE OCCUPANCY **
100%

NUMBER OF TENANTS **
9

MAJOR TENANTS
Maxis Mobile 
Emitherm 
Naza Kia 
Nineteen -O-One  

** As at 31 December 2005
(Note: Acquisition will only be completed in 2nd quarter 2006)   
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THE DIRECTORS OF AXIS REIT MANAGERS BERHAD AT THE DATE OF THIS REPORT ARE:

DATO’ ABDUL AZIM MOHD ZABIDI
Dato' Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi, 46, a Malaysian, has been the Independent Non-Executive Chairman of Axis REIT Managers since 15 
March 2005. He is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Secretaries and Administrators, United Kingdom and holds a Masters of Arts in 
Business Law from the London Guildhall University. He is currently the Chairman of Bank Simpanan Nasional, a position he has held 
since 1999. He is also a director of a number of public and private companies, amongst them, Wijaya Baru Global Bhd, M3nergy 
(Malaysia) Bhd, OSK Ventures International Bhd and Kumpulan Europlus Bhd.

GEORGE STEWART LABROOY
George Stewart LaBrooy, 54, a Malaysian, has been the Director of Axis REIT Managers since 25 October 2004 and was appointed by 
the Board of Directors of Axis REIT Managers as Executive Director on 22 March 2005. He graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering 
(Hons) and a Post Graduate Diploma in Business Studies from the University of Sheffield in 1973 and 1974, respectively. Currently, he is 
a member of the Institute of Engineers, Malaysia.

From 1983 to 1991, he worked as a General Manager in Kee Huat Industries Bhd, a company involved in manufacturing of electrical 
products and subsequently joined Jotun Power Coatings (M) Sdn Bhd as a General Manager from 1991 to 1995. He joined Axis 
Equities Sdn Bhd (a major shareholder of ADSB) in 1995 during which he participated in overseeing two building projects namely the 
build and lease of the Blondal headquarters in Shah Alam and the construction of Axis Plaza, adjacent to the Blondal headquar ters. He 
was also instrumental in setting up the property management division in ADSB and was actively involved in the successful tenanting of 
real estate owned by the shareholders of ADSB. 

1 3 5 6

2 4

1. Lim Kian Thiam

2. George Stewart LaBrooy

3. Dato' Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi

4. Dato' Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah

5. Dato' Mohamed Salleh Bajuri

6. Stephen Tew Peng Hwee 

Alternate Directors (not in picture)

*Alex Lee Lao
Alternate to  Dato' Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah

*Khoo Cheang Ee
Alternate to  Lim Kian Thiam



In November 2003, he spearheaded the project to identify suitable properties owned by common shareholders of ADSB to be injected 
into a REIT. This was successfully concluded on 3 August 2005 when Axis-REIT was listed on the main Board of Bursa Securities. He is 
a popular speaker on the subject of REITs and has presented many papers at seminars in Malaysia and Singapore and currently 
handles the Investor Relations portfolio for Axis REIT as well his function as Executive Director on the Board and a member of the 
Executive Committee. He is also a director of a number of private companies, which is involved in property development and property 
investment.

DATO’ ABAS CARL GUNNAR BIN ABDULLAH
Dato' Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah, 46, a Norwegian, has been a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of Axis REIT Managers 
since 15 March 2005. He is also the Managing Director of ADSB since 1999. He graduated with a Diploma in Chemistry from the 
University of Gothenburg, Sweden in 1980 and a Diploma in Marketing from the University of Oslo, Norway in 1981. 

From 1985 to 1993, he was the Managing Director in Jotun Powder Coatings (M) Sdn Bhd (formerly known as Corro-Coat (M) Sdn 
Bhd). In 1989 he embarked on a build and lease project with the multinational APV Hills & Mills. In 1992 he teamed up with Stephen 
Tew Peng Hwee and Lim Kian Thiam to build Crystal Plaza. He currently serves as a member of the Executive and the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committees of the Board. He is also a director of a number of private companies, which are involved in property 
development and property investment. 

LIM KIAN THIAM
Lim Kian Thiam, 52, a Malaysian, has been a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of Axis REIT Managers since 15 March 2005. 
He is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1978 and has been a Council Member since 1988. He 
also serves in its Executive Committee, Administration Finance & Accounting Committee and chairs its Public Affairs Committee.  

Since 1989, he has purpose built many buildings in Klang Valley for multinationals and local multinational companies. He is also the 
Founder and Chairman of Victoria Investments & Properties Pty Ltd and Jayaland Corporation Pty Ltd, both based in Melbourne, 
Australia since 1994. Victoria Investments & Properties Pty Ltd has been involved in the purchase, value-add and subsequent sale of 
real estate in excess of A$200 million, including commercial office buildings, industrial warehouse, a bulky goods display and retail 
centre, a suburban retail shopping centre and residential land. Jayaland Corporation Pty Ltd is currently planning a sustainable 
township with 8,000 homes on its 737 hectares site, situated 26 kilometers west of Melbourne city center. 

He currently serves as a member of the Executive and the Audit Committees of the Board. He is also a director of a number of private 
companies in Malaysia and Australia, which are involved in property investment.

STEPHEN TEW PENG HWEE
Stephen Tew Peng Hwee, 44, a Malaysian, has been a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of Axis REIT Managers since 25 
October 2004. He graduated with a Diploma from the Institute of Marketing, United Kingdom in 1982. He is the Immediate Past 
President of the Malaysian Institute of Estate Agents and served as a board member of the Board of Valuers, Appraisers and Estate 
Agents from 1998 - 2004. He started his career as a Real Estate Agent 20 years ago and today owns the real estate firm Hectares & 
Stratas. Together with Lim Kian Thiam and other investors, he has over the past 15 years purpose built for investment income, many 
buildings which have housed multinationals. 

In 1992 he teamed up with Lim Kian Thiam and Dato' Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah to build Crystal Plaza. He currently serves as a 
member of the Executive Committee of the Board. He is also a director of a number of private companies, which are investment holding 
companies. 

DATO’ MOHAMED SALLEH BAJURI
Dato' Mohamed Salleh Bajuri, 54, a Malaysian, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of Axis REIT Managers since 15 
March 2005. He is a qualified Chartered Accountant from Ireland and a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA) since 
1986. He came back to Malaysia in 1979, and joined Peat Marwick & Co as its Senior Auditor. He then joined Mayban Finance Bhd as a 
Manager and in 1982 was promoted to General Manager. After that he was seconded to Malayan Banking Bhd and promoted to 
General Manager in 1988, a position he held till 1992.

Between 1982 & 1987, he was the Alternative Chairman of the Association of Finance Companies in Malaysia (AFCM) and was 
Chairman of ACFM Committees for Education and Public Relations. From 1997 to 1999, he was a Director of Saham Sabah Berhad and 
was one of the Trustees for Yayasan Kebajikan SDARA and also Tabung Melayu Pontian Sdn Bhd .

In1992, he took over JB Securities Sdn Bhd, a stock broking firm in Johor, where he held the position of Managing Director till 1995. He 
is now involved in the Hotel and Property Business and is Group Executive Director of CRSC Holdings Bhd. He is also a director of a 
number of public and private companies, amongst others, Asian Pac Holdings Bhd, Seacera Tiles Bhd, Eden Enterprises (M) Bhd, 
Harbour Link Group Bhd, Seal Polymer Industries Bhd, LKT Industrial Bhd and T.H. Hin Corporation Bhd.

ALEX LEE LAO
Alex Lee Lao, 60, a Filipino, has been the Alternate Director to Dato' Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah of Axis REIT Managers since 22 
March 2005. He is a qualified Chemical Engineer and currently a Director of D&L Industries Inc. Manila, where he has had over 30 
years of experience in the manufacturing, marketing and distribution in industries such as colours, chemicals, adhesive, aerosol, paint, 
ink, paper, textiles, rubber, powder coating, soap, detergent, plastic and allied products and food and beverages. He is also a director 
of a number of private companies which are involved in property development and property investment.
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GEORGE STEWART LABROOY
George Stewart LaBrooy has been the Director of Axis REIT Managers since 25 October 2004 and was appointed by the Board of 

Directors of Axis REIT Managers as Executive Director on 22 March 2005. 

LIM YOON PENG
Lim Yoon Peng, 49, a Malaysian, has been the Chief Financial Officer of Axis REIT Managers since 16 May 2005. Prior to joining Axis 

REIT Managers, he spent four years as the Financial Controller cum Company Secretary of Victoria Investments & Properties Pty Ltd of 

Australia and was responsible for the financial management, accounting, tax planning, statutory compliance and company secretarial 

matters for a group of companies involved in property investments and development in Melbourne, Australia. Prior to that, he was the 

Finance Manager of Rangkaian Cipta Sdn Bhd, a property development company. He has more than 25 years of financial 

management, accounting and business management experience and had held senior positions in various multinational companies 

including Lonrho Plc (United Kingdom) and Pacific Dunlop Group (Australia). He is qualified in the field of accounting, having been a 

Fellow Member of The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, United Kingdom since 1985 and a member of Malaysian 

Institute of Accountants since 1988 and National Institute of Accountants, Australia since 1997. 

KHOO CHEANG EE
Khoo Cheang Ee, 50, a Malaysian, has been an Alternate Director to Lim Kian Thiam since 15 March 2005 and was appointed as the 

Investment and Business Development Manager of Axis REIT Managers on 16 May 2005. He is a member of the Institute of Approved 

Company Secretaries since 1994. From 1987 to 1997, he was a Director of Magnet Management Sdn Bhd. Thereafter, he joined IBMS 

(M) Sdn Bhd as a Financial Controller from 1997 to 2002, which is involved in providing administrative services. Prior to joining Axis 

REIT Managers, he was the Financial Controller of KTG Management Sdn Bhd, which is also involved in providing administrative 

services. He is also a director of a number of private companies, which are involved in property investment. 

1. Khoo Cheang Ee

2. George Stewart LaBrooy

3. Lim Yoon Peng



THE MANAGER OF AXIS-REIT
The Manager has the general power over the assets of Axis-REIT. 

The Manager's main responsibility is to manage the assets and 

liabilities of Axis- REIT for the benefit of the Unitholders.

The primary role of the Manager is to set the strategic direction of 

Axis-REIT and make recommendations to the Trustee on 

acquisitions, divestments and enhancements in line with the 

agreed strategy.

The Manager is also responsible for the risk management of 

Axis-REIT. Its other main functions are listed below:

Using its best endeavours to carry on and conduct its 

business in a proper and efficient manner, and conduct all 

transactions of Axis-REIT in a transparent manner and at 

arms length.

Preparing an annual review for the Board of Directors 

which may contain proposals and forecasts on net 

income, Distribution Per Unit, capital expenditure, sales 

and valuations frequency, explanations on variances to 

previous forecasts, written reports on the future potential 

of rentals in the portfolio of properties owned by Axis-

REIT and the underlying assumptions, operational costs 

and any other assumptions.

Ensuring compliance to all legislation, rules and 

guidelines issued by the Securities Commission and 

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, and compliance of any 

tax rulings issues by the Inland Revenue Department.

Attending to all queries from Unitholders.

Supervising the Property Manager, who performs the 

facilities-management, lease and marketing management, 

project-management services and fit-out management 

services.

Axis-REIT is externally managed by the Manager and as 

a result has no employees. The Manager appoints 

experienced and well-qualified personnel to handle its 

day-to-day operations. All Directors and Employees of 

the Manager are remunerated by the Manager, and not 

by Axis-REIT.

Axis REIT Managers Berhad is the appointed manager of Axis-

REIT in accordance with the terms of the Deed dated 15 June 

2005. The Deed outlines the circumstances under which the 

Manager can be retired.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors of the Manager ("the Board") oversees the 

management and corporate governance of the Manager 

including the establishment of Key Performance Indicators 

("KPI's") for management and the monitoring achievement of the 

same. All Board Members participate in matters relating to 

corporate governance, business operations, risk management, 

financial performance and the nomination and review of 

Directors.

The Board meets regularly at least once a quarter, to discuss and 

approve the release of the quarterly, half-year and annual results, 

review acquisitions and disposals, the annual budget, capital 

expenditure requirements, performance of the manager and 

Axis-REIT against the previously approved budget. When 

necessary the Board meets to review and approve acquisitions 

or disposals for recommendation to the Trustee.

The Board has reviewed an operational audit conducted by 

KPMG on 26 Jan 2006 and has instructed the management to 

adopt all recommendations and have them in place in 

accordance with the stipulated timetable. This will result in the 

Manager having in place an effective set of internal controls 

which sets out approval limits for capital expenditure, 

investments and divestments, bank borrowings, cheque 

signatories, risk management amongst others.

Changes to regulations, policies, guidelines and accounting 

policies are monitored closely. The Directors are briefed at Board 

meetings of any changes to current practices at regular Board 

meeting, specially convened meetings or via circularized board 

papers.

Corporate Governance
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Axis REIT Managers Berhad ("The Manager"), in its capacity as the Manager of Axis-REIT recognizes that an effective 

corporate governance culture is critical to performance of the Manager and consequently the success of Axis-REIT, which it 

manages.

As a result the Manager has adopted a comprehensive Corporate Governance framework that meets best practice principles. In 

particular the manager has to act honestly, with due care and diligence, and in the best interest of the Unitholders.

The following sections describe the Manager's main 'Corporate Governance Practices and Policies'. They are designed to 

ensure that applicable laws and regulations as determined by Securities Laws (as defined in section 2(1) of the SCA), the 

Securities Commission ("SC") Guidelines on REITs, the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the Rules of the Depository, 

taxation laws and rulings, the Corporate Governance Code and that the Manager's obligation as described in Axis-REIT's Deed 

are properly and efficiently carried out.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)



1)

2)

3)

BOARD COMPOSITION
As of 31 December 2005 the Board currently comprises six 

members, 1/3 (two) of whom are independent directors in 

compliance with the Securities Commission REIT Guidelines. 

The following principles guide the Board's composition;

The Chairman of the Board should be an independent 

non-executive director,

The Board should comprise directors with a broad range 

of commercial experiences including expertise in fund- 

management and the property market, and

1/3 of its members should be independent directors.

The composition of the Board is reviewed annually to ensure that 

it has the best mix of expertise and experience.

During the Period the Board has met a total of four times. The 

most recent was on 20 January 2006 to approve the Financial 

Accounts and Distribution for the Period.

CHAIRMAN & EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
The Chairman and Executive Director's positions are held by 

separate persons in order to maintain an effective segregation of 

duties.

The Chairman ensures that members of the Board work together 

with the management in a constructive manner to address 

strategy, business operations and enterprise issues.

The Executive Director has full executive responsibilities over the 

execution of the agreed business direction and of all operational 

decisions of managing Axis-REIT.

With 1/3 of the Board being independent directors, it enables the 

management from benefiting from their external and objective 

perspective of issues that appear before the Board. This 

promotes a healthy and professional relationship between the 

Board and the management.

BOARD REMUNERATION
The remuneration of the Directors is paid by the Manager and 

not from Axis-REIT.

COMMITTEES
The Board has established the following committees to assist in 

the discharging of its duties. The committees are:

> The Executive Committee

> The Audit  Committee

> The Nomination and Remuneration Committee

THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was appointed by the Board on 22 

March 2005.  It operates under the delegated authority from the 

Board and is represented by Non executive Directors and the 

Executive Director. Its members for the Period are:

> Dato Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah - Non executive director

> Mr. Stephen Tew Peng Hwee - Non executive director

> Mr. Lim Kian Thiam - Non executive director

> Mr. Stewart LaBrooy - Executive Director

This committee oversees the day-to day activities of the Manager 

on behalf of the Board including:

Approve for presentation to the Board of all acquisitions, 

investments and disposals;

Approve and make recommendations to the Board for all 

financing offers and banking facilities;

Recommend to the Board of changes in gearing limits 

and new Unit issues and

Forward a report on all Executive Committee meetings to 

all Board members

The Executive Committee has met formally a total of five times 

during the period. However there have been several informal 

meetings held between members of the Committee during the 

period.  

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was appointed by the Board on 22 March 

2005. It comprises three members, two of whom (including the 

Chairman) are independent non-executive directors of the Board.

The composition of the committee is

> Dato’ Abdul Azim Zabidi – Chairman and independent non 

executive director

> Dato’ Salleh Bajuri – independent non executive director

> Mr. Lim Kian Thiam – non executive director

The role of the Audit Committee is to monitor and evaluate the 

effectiveness of the Managers internal controls. The Audit 

Committee also reviews the quality and reliability of information 

prepared for inclusion in financial reports. The Audit Committee 

is also responsible for the appointment of the external and 

internal auditors.

The Audit Committee's responsibilities also include:

Reviewing external audit reports to ensure that where 

deficiencies in internal control have been identified, 

appropriate and prompt remedial action is taken by 

management;

Monitoring legislation regulated by Securities Laws (as 

defined in section 2(1) of the SCA), the SC Guidelines on 

REITs, the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the 

Rules of the Depository and taxation laws and rulings 

Reviewing Internal Audit reports pertaining to risk 

management, the operational manual compliance and 

internal controls ensuring that changes recommended 

and agreed on are promptly implemented by the 

management;

28 | Axis-REIT ANNUAL REPORT 2005 | Inaugural Issue

1)

2)

3)

1)

2)

3)

4)THE MANAGER OF AXIS-REIT
The Manager has the general power over the assets of Axis-REIT. 

The Manager's main responsibility is to manage the assets and 

liabilities of Axis- REIT for the benefit of the Unitholders.

The primary role of the Manager is to set the strategic direction of 

Axis-REIT and make recommendations to the Trustee on 

acquisitions, divestments and enhancements in line with the 

agreed strategy.

The Manager is also responsible for the risk management of 

Axis-REIT. Its other main functions are listed below:

Using its best endeavours to carry on and conduct its 

business in a proper and efficient manner, and conduct all 

transactions of Axis-REIT in a transparent manner and at 

arms length.

Preparing an annual review for the Board of Directors 

which may contain proposals and forecasts on net 

income, Distribution Per Unit, capital expenditure, sales 

and valuations frequency, explanations on variances to 

previous forecasts, written reports on the future potential 

of rentals in the portfolio of properties owned by Axis-

REIT and the underlying assumptions, operational costs 

and any other assumptions.

Ensuring compliance to all legislation, rules and 

guidelines issued by the Securities Commission and 

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, and compliance of any 

tax rulings issues by the Inland Revenue Department.

Attending to all queries from Unitholders.

Supervising the Property Manager, who performs the 

facilities-management, lease and marketing management, 

project-management services and fit-out management 

services.

Axis-REIT is externally managed by the Manager and as 

a result has no employees. The Manager appoints 

experienced and well-qualified personnel to handle its 

day-to-day operations. All Directors and Employees of 

the Manager are remunerated by the Manager, and not 

by Axis-REIT.

Axis REIT Managers Berhad is the appointed manager of Axis-

REIT in accordance with the terms of the Deed dated 15 June 

2005. The Deed outlines the circumstances under which the 

Manager can be retired.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors of the Manager ("the Board") oversees the 

management and corporate governance of the Manager 

including the establishment of Key Performance Indicators 

("KPI's") for management and the monitoring achievement of the 

same. All Board Members participate in matters relating to 

corporate governance, business operations, risk management, 

financial performance and the nomination and review of 

Directors.

The Board meets regularly at least once a quarter, to discuss and 

approve the release of the quarterly, half-year and annual results, 

review acquisitions and disposals, the annual budget, capital 

expenditure requirements, performance of the manager and 

Axis-REIT against the previously approved budget. When 

necessary the Board meets to review and approve acquisitions 

or disposals for recommendation to the Trustee.

The Board has reviewed an operational audit conducted by 

KPMG on 26 Jan 2006 and has instructed the management to 

adopt all recommendations and have them in place in 

accordance with the stipulated timetable. This will result in the 

Manager having in place an effective set of internal controls 

which sets out approval limits for capital expenditure, 

investments and divestments, bank borrowings, cheque 

signatories, risk management amongst others.

Changes to regulations, policies, guidelines and accounting 

policies are monitored closely. The Directors are briefed at Board 

meetings of any changes to current practices at regular Board 

meeting, specially convened meetings or via circularized board 

papers.

Corporate Governance
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Axis REIT Managers Berhad ("The Manager"), in its capacity as the Manager of Axis-REIT recognizes that an effective 

corporate governance culture is critical to performance of the Manager and consequently the success of Axis-REIT, which it 

manages.

As a result the Manager has adopted a comprehensive Corporate Governance framework that meets best practice principles. In 

particular the manager has to act honestly, with due care and diligence, and in the best interest of the Unitholders.

The following sections describe the Manager's main 'Corporate Governance Practices and Policies'. They are designed to 

ensure that applicable laws and regulations as determined by Securities Laws (as defined in section 2(1) of the SCA), the 

Securities Commission ("SC") Guidelines on REITs, the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the Rules of the Depository, 

taxation laws and rulings, the Corporate Governance Code and that the Manager's obligation as described in Axis-REIT's Deed 

are properly and efficiently carried out.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)



Reviewing and approving the financial statements and 

audit report for quarterly, half year and annual reports and 

reporting to the Board and

Monitoring the procedures established for related party 

transactions to ensure compliance is strictly adhered to as 

laid out in the Securities Guidelines for REITs.

       

The Audit Committee has reviewed the non audit functions (Tax 

and Operational Audit) carried by the appointed external 

auditor's group, KPMG, and is satisfied that such services will 

not in any way prejudice the independence and objectivity of the 

external auditors.

The Audit committee meets four times a year after the end of 

every quarter in the financial year.

The Audit Committee meets with the auditors four times a year 

and can elect to do so without the presence of the management.

THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was appointed by 

the Board on 22 March 2005. It comprises three members who are:

> Dato’ Abdul Azim Zabidi - Chairman and Independent non    

   executive director

> Dato’ Salleh Bajuri - Independent  non executive director

> Dato’ Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah - Non executive 

director

    

The responsibilities of the Committee also include:

To establish and recommend to the Board the policy 

framework in determining the remuneration of members 

of the Board, the Executive Director, members of 

executive management and to review changes to the 

policy from time to time, so as to ensure that the 

Company attracts and retains the high-calibre directors/ 

executive management who are needed to run Axis-REIT  

successfully.

To recommend to the Board, candidates for directorships 

proposed by management and, within the bounds of 

practicability, by other senior executive or any director or 

shareholder.

To recommend to the Board, directors to fill seats on 

Board Committees.

To recommend to the Board for the continuation (or not) in 

service of executive director(s) and Directors who are due 

for retirement by rotation.

To determine appropriate training for Directors and review 

the fulfillment of such training.

INTERNAL AUDIT
The audit committee has approved the appointment of an 

independent internal auditor to conduct internal audits during the 

year. This will commence for the financial year 2006.
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The scope of the internal audit is to provide risk assessment 

service and compliance audits in order to ensure internal 

controls are aligned to the business strategies as laid out by the 

Board.   

TRADING IN AXIS-REIT UNITS
In general the company encourages the directors and 

employees of the Manager to hold Units, but prohibits them from 

dealing in the Units:

During the period commencing one month before the 

public announcement of Axis-REIT's quarterly, half year 

and annual results, and ending one market day after the 

announcement and

At any time it is in possession of price sensitive price 

information.

Subject to compliance with Section 14.08 and 14.09 of the Bursa 

Malaysia Listing Requirements.

In addition the Manager will announce through the Company 

Secretary the particulars of the holdings of the Directors within 

two market days after the date they acquire or dispose of any 

Units, as the case may be.  

RISK ASSESMENT AND MANAGEMENT
OF BUSINESS RISK
Effective risk management is a fundamental part of Axis-REIT's 

business strategy in order to ensure a steady flow of distributions 

to Unitholders and protecting their interests and value.

The Manager is aware that the most likely risk will arise when 

making property investment decisions, and as such the Manager 

has established a procedure to be followed in the acquisition 

process. In accordance with this policy, the Manager ensures a 

comprehensive due diligence is carried out in relation to the 

proposed investment and the risk factors in making such a 

decision are suitably addressed.

The Board meets quarterly and more often if required to assess 

the performance of the Manager and Axis-REIT against 

established and approved budgets. The Board also assess the 

risk factors that the assets of Axis-REIT are exposed to, 

examines liability management and act on comments submitted 

by the auditors or the Audit Committee.

The Board and the Executive Committee reviews and approves 

all investment decisions.

The management meets regularly to review compliance to 

operational manuals established as well discuss continuous 

disclosure issues. 



1)

2)

3)

4)

DEALINGS WITH CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
The Manager has established the following procedures to deal 

with potential conflicts of interest issues which it (including its 

directors, executive officers and employees) may encounter in 

managing Axis-REIT:

The Manager will be a dedicated manager to Axis-REIT 

and will not manage any other real estate investment trust 

or be involved in any other real property business;

all Executive Officers will be employed by the Manager.

The entry into any related party transaction must be 

approved by a majority vote of directors, including those 

of the independent directors.

The Board shall have 1/3 of its members as independent 

directors.

In respect of matters where the directors have a direct or 

indirect interest in any related party transaction they will 

abstain from voting at any Board meeting.

The directors of the Manager are under a fiduciary duty to Axis-

REIT to act in the best interest in relation to decisions affecting 

Axis-REIT when they are voting as a member of the Board. In 

addition, the directors, the executive director and the executive 

officers of the Manager are expected to act with honesty and 

integrity at all times.

DEALING WITH RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS
The Manager will comply with all requirements as laid out in the 

SC Guidelines on REITs on Related Party Transactions.

The Manager will establish procedures that will ensure that such 

transactions are undertaken in full compliance to the Guidelines 

and on an arm's length basis and on normal commercial terms, 

which are no more favourable than those extended to unrelated 

third parties. The Manager would have to demonstrate to the 

Audit Committee that such transactions (whether they be for the 

purchase of services or property) would be taken on normal 

commercial terms, which may include in the case of the 

purchase of services, the obtaining of quotations from parties 

unrelated to the manager, or in the case of purchase of property, 

the obtaining of valuations from an independent valuer.

In dealing with one or more of any Related Party Transactions, 

the Manager is required to obtain the approvals from the relevant 

parties such as the Securities Commission, Trustee or Unit 

Holder's (as the case may be) as provided under the Deed, SC 

Guidelines on REITs, listing requirements by Bursa Malaysia 

Securities Bhd and other applicable laws. To obtain the 

necessary approvals the Manager would also need to submit to 

the relevant parties such as the Securities Commission, Trustee 

or Unit Holder's, all the necessary recommendation and 

documentation provided for under the Deed, SC Guidelines on 

REITs, listing requirements by Bursa Malaysia Securities Bhd and 

other applicable laws.

All Related Party Transactions are subject to regular periodic 

review by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee plans to review Internal Audit reports to 

ensure that guidelines and procedures established are complied 

with in relation to Related Party Transactions. If a member of the 

Audit Committee has an interest in a transaction he is to abstain 

from participating in the review and approval process in relation 

that transaction.

COMMUNICATION WITH UNITHOLDERS
The listing rules of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad require that 

a listed entity discloses to the market matters that could have a 

material effect on the price of the entity's securities.

The Manager has established a strong culture of continuous 

disclosure and transparent communication with Unit holders and 

the investment community.

The Manager achieves this through timely and full disclosure of 

all material information relating to Axis-REIT by way of public 

announcements on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Bhd website.

The Manager has also conducted regular briefings for analysts 

and fund managers, as well as the media. At these briefings the 

Manager presented the latest acquisitions of Axis-REIT as well as 

discussed the business outlook of the industry.

The manager has also actively participated in various seminars 

on REITs further advancing the understanding of the asset class.

OTHER INFORMATION
Relationship

There were no family relationship among the Directors and/or 

major unitholders

Conflict of Interest

None of the Directors has any conflict of interests with Axis-REIT

Conviction for Offences

None of the Directors has been convicted for any offences other 

than traffic offences within the past ten (10) years.
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Reviewing and approving the financial statements and 

audit report for quarterly, half year and annual reports and 

reporting to the Board and

Monitoring the procedures established for related party 

transactions to ensure compliance is strictly adhered to as 

laid out in the Securities Guidelines for REITs.

       

The Audit Committee has reviewed the non audit functions (Tax 

and Operational Audit) carried by the appointed external 

auditor's group, KPMG, and is satisfied that such services will 

not in any way prejudice the independence and objectivity of the 

external auditors.

The Audit committee meets four times a year after the end of 

every quarter in the financial year.

The Audit Committee meets with the auditors four times a year 

and can elect to do so without the presence of the management.

THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was appointed by 

the Board on 22 March 2005. It comprises three members who are:

> Dato’ Abdul Azim Zabidi - Chairman and Independent non    

   executive director

> Dato’ Salleh Bajuri - Independent  non executive director

> Dato’ Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah - Non executive 

director

    

The responsibilities of the Committee also include:

To establish and recommend to the Board the policy 

framework in determining the remuneration of members 

of the Board, the Executive Director, members of 

executive management and to review changes to the 

policy from time to time, so as to ensure that the 

Company attracts and retains the high-calibre directors/ 

executive management who are needed to run Axis-REIT  

successfully.

To recommend to the Board, candidates for directorships 

proposed by management and, within the bounds of 

practicability, by other senior executive or any director or 

shareholder.

To recommend to the Board, directors to fill seats on 

Board Committees.

To recommend to the Board for the continuation (or not) in 

service of executive director(s) and Directors who are due 

for retirement by rotation.

To determine appropriate training for Directors and review 

the fulfillment of such training.

INTERNAL AUDIT
The audit committee has approved the appointment of an 

independent internal auditor to conduct internal audits during the 

year. This will commence for the financial year 2006.
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The scope of the internal audit is to provide risk assessment 

service and compliance audits in order to ensure internal 

controls are aligned to the business strategies as laid out by the 

Board.   

TRADING IN AXIS-REIT UNITS
In general the company encourages the directors and 

employees of the Manager to hold Units, but prohibits them from 

dealing in the Units:

During the period commencing one month before the 

public announcement of Axis-REIT's quarterly, half year 

and annual results, and ending one market day after the 

announcement and

At any time it is in possession of price sensitive price 

information.

Subject to compliance with Section 14.08 and 14.09 of the Bursa 

Malaysia Listing Requirements.

In addition the Manager will announce through the Company 

Secretary the particulars of the holdings of the Directors within 

two market days after the date they acquire or dispose of any 

Units, as the case may be.  

RISK ASSESMENT AND MANAGEMENT
OF BUSINESS RISK
Effective risk management is a fundamental part of Axis-REIT's 

business strategy in order to ensure a steady flow of distributions 

to Unitholders and protecting their interests and value.

The Manager is aware that the most likely risk will arise when 

making property investment decisions, and as such the Manager 

has established a procedure to be followed in the acquisition 

process. In accordance with this policy, the Manager ensures a 

comprehensive due diligence is carried out in relation to the 

proposed investment and the risk factors in making such a 

decision are suitably addressed.

The Board meets quarterly and more often if required to assess 

the performance of the Manager and Axis-REIT against 

established and approved budgets. The Board also assess the 

risk factors that the assets of Axis-REIT are exposed to, 

examines liability management and act on comments submitted 

by the auditors or the Audit Committee.

The Board and the Executive Committee reviews and approves 

all investment decisions.

The management meets regularly to review compliance to 

operational manuals established as well discuss continuous 

disclosure issues. 
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MEMBERS OF THE RESPECTIVE COMMITTEES

Dato’ Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi

Dato’ Mohamed Salleh Bajuri

Dato’ Abas Carl Gunnar

Lim Kian Thiam

Stephen Tew Peng Hwee

George Stewart LaBrooy

C - Chairman, M - Member

AUDIT

COMMITTEE

C

M

M

NOMINATION

& REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE

C

M

M

EXECUTIVE

COMMITTEE

C

M

M

M

MEETING ATTENDANCE

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

Dato’ Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi

Dato’ Mohamed Salleh Bajuri

Dato’ Abas Carl Gunnar

Lim Kian Thiam

Stephen Tew Peng Hwee

George Stewart LaBrooy

AUDIT

COMMITTEE

(No of meetings

held - 2)

2

2

2

NOMINATION

& REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE

(No of meetings held - 2)

1

1

1

BOARD

MEETINGS

(No of meetings

held - 3)

3

2

3

3

3

3

EXECUTIVE

COMMITTEE

(No of meetings

held - 4)

4

4

4

4

TOTAL

              (RM)

439,950

233,250

Non-Executive

4

1

-

-

-

-

SALARIES & 

OTHER EMOLUMENTS

439,950

23,250

Executive

-

 -

-

1

 -

1

FEES

0

210,000

Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Range of Remuneration - RM

50,000 and below

50,001 - 100,000

100,001 - 150,000

150,001 - 200,000

200,001 - 250,000

250,001 - 300,000
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The Manager is pleased to report that since the listing of 
Axis-REIT, its objective is to provide Unitholders with open 
and transparent communications through the Bursa Malaysia 
website, press briefings, seminars and investor and analyst 
briefings.

We are in the process of setting up our website www.axis-
reit.com.my which is planned to be fully operational in 2006. 
Through it the investing public will be able to receive e-mail 
alerts and up to date information on announcements of the 
Fund.

We will continue to generate more awareness and interest in 
REITs particularly by our active participation in local 
seminars and briefings to International Investors.

CONTACT INFORMATION
To find out more about Axis-REIT please contact:

Executive Director - Stewart LaBrooy 
Tel : +603 - 7958 4882
Fax : +603 - 7957 6881
E mail : info@axis-reit.com.my

THE UNIT REGISTRAR
Symphony Share Registrars Sdn Bhd
Level 26 Menara Multi-Purpose
Capital Square
No 8 Jalan Munshi Abdullah
50100 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : 03 - 2721 2222
Email : ssrs@symphony.com.my
Website : www.symphony.com.my

BURSA MALAYSIA INVESTOR RELATIONS
Email : enquiries@bursamalaysia.com
Tel : (603) 2034 7000
Fax : (603) 2732 0069

PROPOSED CORPORATE TIMETABLE
FOR AXIS-REIT

JANUARY 2006
> Announcement of Income Distribution to Unitholders and 

entitlement date for 2005
> Announcement of unaudited result for the period ended 

31 December 2005 

FEBRUARY 2006
> Payment of Income distribution to Unitholders
> Release of Audited Results for the period ended 31 Dec 2005

APRIL 2006
> Announcement of unaudited 2006 1st Quarter results

JULY 2006
> Announcement of unaudited 2006 2nd  Quarter results
> Announcement of Interim Income Distribution to Unitholders 

and entitlement date for 1st half year distribution 2006

AUGUST 2006
> Payment of Interim Income distribution to Unitholders

OCTOBER 2006
> Announcement of unaudited 2006 3rd  Quarter results 

JANUARY 2007
> Announcement of unaudited results for the year ending 31 

Dec 2006
> Announcement of Income Distribution to Unitholders and 

entitlement date for 2006

FEBRUARY 2007
> Payment of Income distribution to Unitholders 
> Release of Audited Results for the year ending 31 Dec 2006

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

1) How often does Axis-REIT makes any income distribution?
Semi annually. Income distributions are payable no later than 28 
February (for final year end distribution) and 31 August (for 
interim half year) each year. However, in certain circumstances 
such as the issuance of new units by Axis-REIT during the year, it 
may be necessary to make a special income distribution at 
different periods in order to attribute income distribution to 
existing Unitholders to avoid any income dilution from the 
enlarged Unitholders' capital.

2) How is this income distribution paid?
Payments are made via cheques to each unit holder with an 
attached Distribution Tax Voucher detailing entitlement and 
gross/net amount payable.

3) Are there different types of income distribution?
Yes. At the Trust level, the source from which income is 
distributed could be derived from:-
a) Current year's realised income before taxation;
b) Current year's tax exempt income, if any;
c) Portion of 'Accumulated Retained Earnings' that have 

been taxed;
d) Portion of 'Accumulated Retained Earnings' that consist of tax 

exempt income;

4) What is the tax treatment of Unitholders?
Income of a REIT (where subject to income tax), will be liable to 
tax at the rate of 28% (prevailing rate).  However, the income 
which is distributed to unit holders in the same period, will not be 
subject to income tax at the REIT's level.  Instead, unit holders 
will be taxed at their respective tax rates on the income 
distributed in the same period.

Income which were undistributed and taxed in the previous years 
at the REIT's level are also taxable at the unit holders' level but 
the tax paid by the REIT is imputed to be the tax paid by the 
beneficiaries ("imputed tax").

At the unit holder level there is a need to differentiate between 
resident unit holder and non-resident (foreign) unit holders. 
Based on current tax legislations, the tax treatment is as follows:-

Income of the REIT distributed in the same basis period:-

> Resident unitholders
Individuals and other non-corporate unit holders would be 
subject to income tax at scale rates.  The prevailing scale 
rates range from 1% to 28%.  As for the corporate unit 
holders, they would be taxed at the corporate tax rate (the 
prevailing rate is 28%) on distributions of income from the 
REIT to the extent of an amount equivalent to their share of 
the total taxable income of the REIT.  From Year of 
Assessment 2004 onwards, corporate unit holders with 
paid-up capital in the form of ordinary shares of RM2.5 
million and below will be subject to a tax rate of 20% on 
chargeable income of up to RM500,000.  For chargeable 
income in excess of RM500,000, the prevailing rate of 28% 
is still applicable.

> Non resident (Foreign) unitholders
Non-resident unit holders would be subject to Malaysian 
income tax at the prevailing rate of 28% and this tax will be 
collected through a withholding tax mechanism, i.e. 
withholding tax of 28% would be deducted on the income 
distributed to non-resident Unitholders.
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MEMBERS OF THE RESPECTIVE COMMITTEES

Dato’ Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi

Dato’ Mohamed Salleh Bajuri

Dato’ Abas Carl Gunnar

Lim Kian Thiam

Stephen Tew Peng Hwee

George Stewart LaBrooy

C - Chairman, M - Member

AUDIT

COMMITTEE

C

M

M

NOMINATION

& REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE

C

M

M

EXECUTIVE

COMMITTEE

C

M

M

M

MEETING ATTENDANCE

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

Dato’ Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi

Dato’ Mohamed Salleh Bajuri

Dato’ Abas Carl Gunnar

Lim Kian Thiam

Stephen Tew Peng Hwee

George Stewart LaBrooy

AUDIT

COMMITTEE

(No of meetings

held - 2)

2

2

2

NOMINATION

& REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE

(No of meetings held - 2)

1

1

1

BOARD

MEETINGS

(No of meetings

held - 3)

3

2

3

3

3

3

EXECUTIVE

COMMITTEE

(No of meetings

held - 4)

4

4

4

4

TOTAL

              (RM)

439,950

233,250

Non-Executive

4

1

-

-

-

-

SALARIES & 

OTHER EMOLUMENTS

439,950

23,250

Executive

-

 -

-

1

 -

1

FEES

0

210,000

Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Range of Remuneration - RM

50,000 and below

50,001 - 100,000

100,001 - 150,000

150,001 - 200,000

200,001 - 250,000

250,001 - 300,000
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Resident and non resident unitholders
This income would have been subject to income tax at the REIT's 
level at the rate of 28% in previous years and such income 
distributed from the REIT will carry a tax credit proportionate to 
each unit holder's share of the total taxable income in respect of 
the tax paid by the REIT.  

Resident unit holders would be subject to income tax at scale 
rates, i.e. range from 1% to 28%. Non-resident unit holders would 
be subject to Malaysian income tax at the prevailing rate of 28%.  
Both resident and non-resident unit holders will be entitled to 
utilise the tax credit as a set off against the tax payable by them.  
No other withholding tax will be imposed on such income 
distribution of the REIT.

5) How do I calculate my distribution?
For the financial period ended 31 December 2005, the 
distribution was 4.7 sen per unit.

ASSUMPTION DISTRIBUTION TO DISTRIBUTION TO NON-RESIDENT

RESIDENT UNITHOLDER UNITHOLDER (28% TAXED AT SOURCE) 

10,000 RM 470.00 RM 338.40
Axis-REIT
Units

6) What is my Distribution yield?

UNITHOLDER DISTRIBUTION ANNUALIZED ANNUALIZED DISTRIBUTION 

(SEN) DISTRIBUTION YIELD BASED ON CLOSING 

YIELD BASED ON PRICE OF RM 1.73 ON 

IPO PRICE OF 31 DECEMBER 2005

RM 1.25 

Resident 4.70 9.2% 6.65%
Foreign 3.384 6.63% 4.8%

7) Where can I view the Trust Deed of Axis-REIT?
The Deed is available for inspection at the principal place of 
business of the Manager and at the principal place of business 
of the Trustee, OSK Trustee Berhad. 

8) What are the total number of Axis-REIT Units currently in 
issue?
A total of 205,901,000 Units are in circulation as at 31 December 
2005.

9)  When can new Units be issued?
The Manager may from time to time recommend an increase in 
the number of Units by way of rights issue or bonus issue to 
existing Unitholders in proportion to their holding of Units, or by 
way of placement to any person, as consideration issue for 
subscription or such other methods as may be accepted by the 
SC. The issue of Units are to finance acquisitions for Axis-REIT or 
to balance the debt-equity matrix of the Fund. The prior 
approvals of the SC and the Trustee are required for any increase 
in the size of the REIT through the creation of further Units. The 
prior approval of the Unitholders by way of ordinary resolution or 
otherwise will also be required for the creation of further Units 
where stipulated in the Deed or under the applicable laws and 
requirements.

10) What are my rights as a Unitholder?
The key rights of Unitholders include rights to:

receive income and other distributions attributable to 
the Units held;

receive the fund reports of Axis-REIT; and

participate in the termination of Axis-REIT by 
receiving a share of all net cash proceeds derived 
from the realisation of the assets of Axis-REIT less 
any liabilities, in accordance with their proportionate 
interests in Axis-REIT.

11) How can the Trust Deed be amended?
Save where an amendment to the Deed has been approved by a 
resolution of not less than 2/3 of all Unitholders for the time being 
(or such other majority as may be required under the SC 
Guidelines on REITs) passed at a meeting of Unitholders duly 
convened and held in accordance with the provisions of the 
Deed, no amendment may be made to the provisions of the 
Deed unless the Trustee certifies, in its opinion, that such 
amendment does not materially prejudice the interests of 
Unitholders and does not operate to release to any material 
extent the Trustee or the Manager from any responsibility to the 
Unitholders. 

12) Under what circumstances can a Meeting of Unitholders 
be called?
Under the applicable law and requirements and the provisions of 
the Deed, Axis-REIT will not hold any meetings for Unitholders 
unless the Trustee or the Manager convenes a meeting or unless 
not less than 50 Unitholders or 1/10th in number of Unitholders 
(whichever is lesser) request a meeting to be convened.

Any decision to be made by resolution of Unitholders shall be 
made by ordinary resolution, unless a special resolution is 
required by the applicable laws and requirements and/or the 
Deed.

At least 14 days' notice of every meeting (other than a meeting 
convened to pass a special resolution, which requires at least 21 
day's notice) shall be given to the Unitholders in the manner 
provided in the Deed. The quorum at a meeting shall be as 
follows: 

where an ordinary resolution only is to be proposed, at 
least five persons holding or representing by proxy at 
least 10% of  all the Units and carrying the right to vote at 
the meeting; and 

where a special resolution is to be proposed, at least five 
persons holding or representing by proxy at least 15% of 
all the Units and carrying the right to vote at the meeting.

Voting at a meeting shall be by a show of hands provided that a 
poll shall be taken in any case where:

it is required by the Deed or by law that the question be 
decided by a majority which is to be measured by a 
percentage of the votes of those present; or

it is demanded either before or immediately after any 
question is put to a show of hands by Unitholders present, 
holding (or representing by proxy) between them not less 
than 5% of the Units issued.

13)  Can the Manager vote at Unitholders' meetings?
No. Neither the Manager nor its related corporations or 
associated persons (as defined in the Deed) shall be entitled to 
vote in respect of any matter and shall not be counted in a 
quorum, unless otherwise permitted by the SC.

>

>

>

a)

b)

a)

b)

>

Income of the REIT which was not distributed in the previous years:-



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Liabilities 

Borrowings and trade and other payables are stated at cost.   

Provisions 
A provision is recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 

settle a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount.

Provisions for income distribution 

Provisions for income distribution is recognised when any distribution declared, determined or publicly recommended by the 

Directors of the Manager and approved by the Trustee but not distributed at the balance sheet date.

Impairment 
The carrying amount of the assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of 

impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised 

whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs exceeds its recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the 

impairment loss is charged to equity. 

 

 The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and its value in use. In assessing value in use, estimated 

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 

of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash 

inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount and only 

to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. The reversal is recognised in the income statement, 

unless it reverses an impairment loss on a revalued asset, in which case it is taken to equity.

Income tax
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement 

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.  

Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially 

enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.             

Revenue 
Rental income
Rental income consists of rental income from letting of lots, car park and other associated income, is recognised on a 

straight-line basis over the term of rent.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the asset.

Expenses
Property expenses
Property expenses consist of property management fees, quit rents and assessment, and other property outgoings in 

relation to investment properties where such expenses are the responsibility of Axis-REIT. 

Property manager fees are recognised on an accrual basis using the applicable formula, stipulated in Note 1(a).  

Interest expense
All interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowings are expensed as incurred.

Listing expenses
Listing expenses represent expenses incurred for the listing of Axis-REIT on the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia Securities 

Berhad. The expenses are deducted directly against the Unitholders' fund. 
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Statement by the Manager
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In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 39 to 51 are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the 

Deed dated 15 June 2005, Securities Commission's Guidelines on Real Estate Investment Trust, applicable securities laws and 

applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Axis Real Estate 

Investment Trust at 31 December 2005 and of the results of their operations and cash flows for the period ended on that date.

 

For and on behalf of the Manager, 

Axis REIT Managers Berhad, 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Kuala Lumpur,

Date: 21 February 2006

GEORGE STEWART LABROOY

STEPHEN TEW PENG HWEE



Statutory Declaration 
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I, George Stewart LaBrooy, the Director of Axis REIT Managers Berhad primarily responsible for the financial management of Axis 

Real Estate Investment Trust, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 39 to 51, are, to the best 

of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of 

the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed at Petaling Jaya on 21 February 2006.

GEORGE STEWART LABROOY

Before me:

Statement by the Manager
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In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 39 to 51 are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the 

Deed dated 15 June 2005, Securities Commission's Guidelines on Real Estate Investment Trust, applicable securities laws and 

applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Axis Real Estate 

Investment Trust at 31 December 2005 and of the results of their operations and cash flows for the period ended on that date.

 

For and on behalf of the Manager, 

Axis REIT Managers Berhad, 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Kuala Lumpur,

Date: 21 February 2006

GEORGE STEWART LABROOY

STEPHEN TEW PENG HWEE



Trustee Report
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We have acted as Trustee of Axis Real Estate Investment Trust ("Axis-REIT") for the financial period ended 31 December 2005. In our 

opinion, Axis REIT Managers Berhad ("the Manager") has managed Axis-REIT in accordance with the limitations imposed on the 

investment powers of the Manager and the Trustee under the Deed dated 15 June 2005, other provisions of the Deed, the Securities 

Commission Act, 1993, the applicable Guidelines on Real Estate Investment Trusts and other applicable laws during the financial period 

then ended. 

We have also ensured the following:

(a) the procedures and processes employed by the Manager to value and price the units of Axis-REIT are adequate and that such 

valuation/pricing is carried out in accordance with the Deed and other regulatory requirements; and

(b) the creation of units are carried out in accordance with the Deed and other regulatory requirements.

We confirm that the recommended net income distribution of 4.70 sen per unit for the financial period is in line with and is reflective of the 

objectives of Axis-REIT.

For and on behalf of the Trustee,

OSK Trustees Berhad

Ong Eu Jin

Chief Operating Officer

Kuala Lumpur,

Date: 21 February 2006

To the Unitholders of Axis Real Estate Investment Trust (Established in Malaysia)



Report of the Auditors
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We have audited the financial statements set out on pages 39 to 51.  The preparation of the financial statements is the responsibility of 

the Directors of Axis REIT Manager Berhad ("the Manager") of Axis Real Estate Investment Trust ("Axis-REIT"). 

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on the financial statements and to report our opinion to you, as 

a body, in accordance with Securities Commission's Guidelines on Real Estate Investment Trust and for no other purpose. We do not 

assume responsibility to any other person for the contents of this report.

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved Standards on Auditing in Malaysia.  These standards require that we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain all the information and explanations which we consider necessary to provide us with evidence to give 

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 

evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes an assessment of the accounting 

principles used and significant estimates made by the Manager as well as evaluating the overall adequacy of the presentation of 

information in the financial statements.  We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements of Axis-REIT are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Deed dated 15 June 

2005, Securities Commission's Guidelines on Real Estate Investment Trust, applicable securities laws and applicable approved 

accounting standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Axis-REIT at 31 December 2005 and the 

results of its operations and cash flows for the period ended on that date.

KPMG  Seow Yoo Lin

Firm Number: AF 0758  Partner

Chartered Accountants Approval Number:  1497/02/07(J)

Kuala Lumpur,

Date: 21 February 2006

To the Unitholders of Axis Real Estate Investment Trust (Established in Malaysia)
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We have acted as Trustee of Axis Real Estate Investment Trust ("Axis-REIT") for the financial period ended 31 December 2005. In our 

opinion, Axis REIT Managers Berhad ("the Manager") has managed Axis-REIT in accordance with the limitations imposed on the 

investment powers of the Manager and the Trustee under the Deed dated 15 June 2005, other provisions of the Deed, the Securities 

Commission Act, 1993, the applicable Guidelines on Real Estate Investment Trusts and other applicable laws during the financial period 

then ended. 

We have also ensured the following:

(a) the procedures and processes employed by the Manager to value and price the units of Axis-REIT are adequate and that such 

valuation/pricing is carried out in accordance with the Deed and other regulatory requirements; and

(b) the creation of units are carried out in accordance with the Deed and other regulatory requirements.

We confirm that the recommended net income distribution of 4.70 sen per unit for the financial period is in line with and is reflective of the 

objectives of Axis-REIT.

For and on behalf of the Trustee,

OSK Trustees Berhad

Ong Eu Jin

Chief Operating Officer

Kuala Lumpur,

Date: 21 February 2006

To the Unitholders of Axis Real Estate Investment Trust (Established in Malaysia)



Balance Sheet
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The notes set out on pages 43 to 51 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial 
statements.

As at 31 December 2005

NOTE

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

2005

RM'000

332,200

4,350

336,550

2,799

222

61

3,082

339,632

12,104

40,000

9,677

61,781

277,851

234,892

341

42,618

277,851

205,901

1.396

1.349

Investments      

Investment properties

Deposits placed with licensed banks

Other assets   

Trade and other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Tax recoverable

Total assets

Liabilities   

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Provisions for income distribution

Total liabilities

   

Net asset value ("NAV")

Financed by:

Unitholders' funds   

Unitholders' capital

Undistributed income

Revaluation reserve

Units in circulation ('000) 

NAV per unit (RM)

- before income distribution

- after income distribution



 
NOTE

   
11
12

14

15

 

16

16
16

3.8.2005 to

31.12.2005

RM'000

   
13,761
(2,300)

11,461
328

11,789

794
57
40
10
98

738

1,737 

10,052
(34)

10,018

10,018
-   

 
10,018

4.87

5.27
5.25

9,677

4.70
4.70

 

Gross revenue
Property expenses 

Net rental income
Interest income 

Total income 

Manager's fees
Trustee's fees
Auditor's fees
Tax agent's fees
Administrative expenses
Interest expense

Total expenses

Income before taxation
Tax expense 

Net income for the period

Net income for the period is made up as follows:
Realised 
Unrealised 

Earnings per unit - (sen)

Earning per unit (before manager's fee)
- Gross (sen)
- Net (sen)

Net income distribution
Proposed final income distribution of 4.70 sen
payable on 28 February 2006 

Final income distribution per unit
- Gross (sen) 
- Net* (sen)

* Withholding tax of 28% will be deducted for distributions made to non-resident Unitholders.

The notes set out on pages 43 to 51 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial 
statements.

Income Statement
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For the period from 3 August 2005 (date of commencement) to 31 December 2005

Balance Sheet
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The notes set out on pages 43 to 51 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial 
statements.

As at 31 December 2005

NOTE

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

2005

RM'000

332,200

4,350

336,550

2,799

222

61

3,082

339,632

12,104

40,000

9,677

61,781

277,851

234,892

341

42,618

277,851

205,901

1.396

1.349

Investments      

Investment properties

Deposits placed with licensed banks

Other assets   

Trade and other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Tax recoverable

Total assets

Liabilities   

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Provisions for income distribution

Total liabilities

   

Net asset value ("NAV")

Financed by:

Unitholders' funds   

Unitholders' capital

Undistributed income

Revaluation reserve

Units in circulation ('000) 

NAV per unit (RM)

- before income distribution

- after income distribution



The notes set out on pages 43 to 51 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial 
statements.

UNITHOLDERS'

CAPITAL

RM'000

-

  

-

-

-

241,083

-

(6,191)

234,892

234,892

Note 9

NON-

DISTRIBUTABLE

REVALUATION

RESERVE

RM'000

-

  

-

42,618

42,618

-

-

-

-

42,618

DISTRIBUTABLE

UNDISTRIBUTED

INCOME

RM'000

- 

  

10,018

-

10,018

-

(9,677)

-

(9,677)

341

TOTAL

RM'000

-

  

10,018

42,618

52,636

241,083

(9,677)

(6,191)

225,215

277,851

At 3 August 2005

Operations for the period from
3 August 2005 to 
31 December 2005

Net income for the period

Revaluation reserve (Note 10) 

Increase in net assets resulting
from operations 

Unitholders' transactions

Creation of Units

Distribution to  
Unitholders (Note 16))

Listing expenses (Note 17)

Increase in net assets resulting
from Unitholders' transactions 

At 31 December 2005 

Statement of Changes In Net Asset Value
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For the period from 3 August 2005 (date of commencement) to 31 December 2005



The notes set out on pages 43 to 51 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial 
statements.

i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts:

3.8.2005 TO

31.12.2005

RM'000

10,052

738
(328)

10,462

(2,799)
 12,104

19,767
(95)

19,672

328
(450)

(182,082)

(182,204)
 

(738)
(6,191)

133,583
40,000

166,654

4,122
-   

4,122

 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Income before taxation
Adjustments for: 

Interest expense
 Interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes
(Increase)/Decrease in working capital:

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Cash generated by operating activities
Tax paid

Net cash generated by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income
Increase in pledged deposits placed with licensed banks
Purchase of investment properties

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Listing expenses
Proceeds from issue of Units
Proceeds from borrowings

Net cash generated by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

2005

RM'000

222
3,900

4,122

 

Cash and bank balances
Deposits with licensed bank (excluding deposits pledged)

Cash Flow Statement
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For the period from 3 August 2005 (date of commencement) to 31 December 2005

The notes set out on pages 43 to 51 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial 
statements.

UNITHOLDERS'

CAPITAL

RM'000

-

  

-

-

-

241,083

-

(6,191)

234,892

234,892

Note 9

NON-

DISTRIBUTABLE

REVALUATION

RESERVE

RM'000

-

  

-

42,618

42,618

-

-

-

-

42,618

DISTRIBUTABLE

UNDISTRIBUTED

INCOME

RM'000

- 

  

10,018

-

10,018

-

(9,677)

-

(9,677)

341

TOTAL

RM'000

-

  

10,018

42,618

52,636

241,083

(9,677)

(6,191)

225,215

277,851

At 3 August 2005

Operations for the period from
3 August 2005 to 
31 December 2005

Net income for the period

Revaluation reserve (Note 10) 

Increase in net assets resulting
from operations 

Unitholders' transactions

Creation of Units

Distribution to  
Unitholders (Note 16))

Listing expenses (Note 17)

Increase in net assets resulting
from Unitholders' transactions 

At 31 December 2005 

Statement of Changes In Net Asset Value
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For the period from 3 August 2005 (date of commencement) to 31 December 2005



GENERAL
Axis Real Estate Investment Trust ("Axis-REIT") is a Malaysia-domiciled real estate investment trust constituted pursuant to the 

deed dated 15 June 2005 (the "Deed") between Axis REIT Managers Berhad (the "Manager") and OSK Trustees Berhad (the 

"Trustee"). The Deed is regulated by the Securities Commission Act, 1993, the Securities Commission's Guidelines on Real Estate 

Investment Trusts, the Listing Requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the Rules of the Depository and taxation laws and 

rulings. Axis-REIT will continue its operations until such time as determined by the Trustee and the Manager as provided under the 

provisions of Clause 26 of the Deed.

Axis-REIT was listed on the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 3 August 2005.

The principal activity of Axis-REIT is to invest in a diverse portfolio of properties with the primary objective of achieving an attractive 

level of return from rental income and for long-term capital growth.

Axis-REIT has entered into several service agreements in relation to the management of Axis-REIT and its property operations. 

The fee structure of these services is as follows:

Property management fees

The Property Manager, Axis Management Sdn. Bhd. is entitled to a property management fee in respect of the management of 

the investment properties owned by Axis-REIT, as provided in the Deed. The fee is based on a certain graduated scale as 

provided in the provisions of the revised Valuers, Appraisers and Estate Agents Act, 1981 as required by the Securities 

Commission's Guidelines on Real Estate Investment Trust. The property management fees are payable monthly in arrears.

Manager's fees

Pursuant to the Deed, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of up to a maximum of 1.00% per annum of the Net Asset Value 

of Axis-REIT, calculated based on the monthly accrual basis and payable monthly in arrears. The Manager's fees for the period 

ended 31 December 2005 of RM794,177 is 0.7% of the monthly net asset value.

Trustee's fees

Pursuant to the Deed, the Trustee is entitled to receive a fee of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value of Axis-REIT 

calculated based on the monthly accrual basis and payable monthly in arrears. The Trustee's fees for the period ended 31 

December 2005 is RM56,727.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following accounting policies are adopted by Axis-REIT.

Basis of accounting 

The financial statements of Axis-REIT are prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements and in compliance with the provisions of the Deed, Securities Commission's Guidelines on Real Estate Investment 

Trust, Securities Commission Act, 1993 and applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia.

Investment properties

The freehold and leasehold properties are considered as investment properties which are held to earn rentals or for capital 

appreciation or both. 

 

Investment properties are stated at cost.  No depreciation is provided on investment properties. It is Axis-REIT's practice to 

appraise the investment properties at least once every year, by independent professional valuers based on open market value, 

and to maintain these properties in such condition that the residual value is high so that any depreciation, if applicable, would 

be insignificant.  Any surplus arising there from will be incorporated in the financial statements.  The related maintenance 

expenditure is dealt with in the income statement.

Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, balances and deposits with 

banks and highly liquid investments which have an insignificant risk of changes in value and are presented net of bank 

overdrafts and pledged deposits.

1.

2.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Liabilities 

Borrowings and trade and other payables are stated at cost.   

Provisions 
A provision is recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 

settle a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount.

Provisions for income distribution 

Provisions for income distribution is recognised when any distribution declared, determined or publicly recommended by the 

Directors of the Manager and approved by the Trustee but not distributed at the balance sheet date.

Impairment 
The carrying amount of the assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of 

impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised 

whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs exceeds its recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the 

impairment loss is charged to equity. 

 

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and its value in use. In assessing value in use, estimated 

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 

of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash 

inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount and only 

to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. The reversal is recognised in the income statement, 

unless it reverses an impairment loss on a revalued asset, in which case it is taken to equity.

Income tax
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement 

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.  

Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially 

enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.             

Revenue 
Rental income
Rental income consists of rental income from letting of lots, car park and other associated income, is recognised on a 

straight-line basis over the term of rent.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the asset.

Expenses
Property expenses
Property expenses consist of property management fees, quit rents and assessment, and other property outgoings in 

relation to investment properties where such expenses are the responsibility of Axis-REIT. 

Property manager fees are recognised on an accrual basis using the applicable formula, stipulated in Note 1(a).  

Interest expense
All interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowings are expensed as incurred.

Listing expenses
Listing expenses represent expenses incurred for the listing of Axis-REIT on the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia Securities 

Berhad. The expenses are deducted directly against the Unitholders' fund. 

2.

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(j)

i)

ii)

i)

ii)

iii)
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GENERAL
Axis Real Estate Investment Trust ("Axis-REIT") is a Malaysia-domiciled real estate investment trust constituted pursuant to the 

deed dated 15 June 2005 (the "Deed") between Axis REIT Managers Berhad (the "Manager") and OSK Trustees Berhad (the 

"Trustee"). The Deed is regulated by the Securities Commission Act, 1993, the Securities Commission's Guidelines on Real Estate 

Investment Trusts, the Listing Requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the Rules of the Depository and taxation laws and 

rulings. Axis-REIT will continue its operations until such time as determined by the Trustee and the Manager as provided under the 

provisions of Clause 26 of the Deed.

Axis-REIT was listed on the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 3 August 2005.

The principal activity of Axis-REIT is to invest in a diverse portfolio of properties with the primary objective of achieving an attractive 

level of return from rental income and for long-term capital growth.

Axis-REIT has entered into several service agreements in relation to the management of Axis-REIT and its property operations. 

The fee structure of these services is as follows:

Property management fees

The Property Manager, Axis Management Sdn. Bhd. is entitled to a property management fee in respect of the management of 

the investment properties owned by Axis-REIT, as provided in the Deed. The fee is based on a certain graduated scale as 

provided in the provisions of the revised Valuers, Appraisers and Estate Agents Act, 1981 as required by the Securities 

Commission's Guidelines on Real Estate Investment Trust. The property management fees are payable monthly in arrears.

Manager's fees

Pursuant to the Deed, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of up to a maximum of 1.00% per annum of the Net Asset Value 

of Axis-REIT, calculated based on the monthly accrual basis and payable monthly in arrears. The Manager's fees for the period 

ended 31 December 2005 of RM794,177 is 0.7% of the monthly net asset value.

Trustee's fees

Pursuant to the Deed, the Trustee is entitled to receive a fee of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value of Axis-REIT 

calculated based on the monthly accrual basis and payable monthly in arrears. The Trustee's fees for the period ended 31 

December 2005 is RM56,727.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following accounting policies are adopted by Axis-REIT.

Basis of accounting 

The financial statements of Axis-REIT are prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements and in compliance with the provisions of the Deed, Securities Commission's Guidelines on Real Estate Investment 

Trust, Securities Commission Act, 1993 and applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia.

Investment properties

The freehold and leasehold properties are considered as investment properties which are held to earn rentals or for capital 

appreciation or both. 

 

Investment properties are stated at cost.  No depreciation is provided on investment properties. It is Axis-REIT's practice to 

appraise the investment properties at least once every year, by independent professional valuers based on open market value, 

and to maintain these properties in such condition that the residual value is high so that any depreciation, if applicable, would 

be insignificant.  Any surplus arising there from will be incorporated in the financial statements.  The related maintenance 

expenditure is dealt with in the income statement.

Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, balances and deposits with 

banks and highly liquid investments which have an insignificant risk of changes in value and are presented net of bank 

overdrafts and pledged deposits.

1.

2.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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DEPOSITS PLACED WITH LICENSED BANKS

  

Deposits placed with licensed banks

Included in fixed deposits is RM450,000 pledged for banking facilities granted to Axis-REIT (Note 7).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Deposits and professional fees paid for the purchase of a property (Note 24)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued expenses

Tenants' deposits

- payable within 12 months

- payable after 12 months

Included in other payables and accrued expenses is amount due to the Manager and the Trustee of RM169,503 and RM11,531 

respectively which are unsecured, interest free and payable monthly in arrears.

BORROWINGS

 Revolving credit - secured

The revolving credit is secured by way of fixed charges over certain leasehold land and buildings (Note 3), deposits with licensed 

banks (Note 4) and bear interest rate ranging from 4.40% to 4.45% per annum.

TERMS AND DEBT REPAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 

Revolving credit

PROVISIONS FOR INCOME DISTRIBUTION

Balance at 3 August 2005 (date of commencement)  

Provisions made during the period

Balance at 31 December 2005

46 | Axis-REIT ANNUAL REPORT 2005 | Inaugural Issue

2005

RM'000

4,350

2005

RM'000

938

183

1,678

2,799

2005

RM'000

169

899

953

10,083

12,104

2005

RM'000

40,000

2005

RM'000

-

9,677

9,677

2 - 5

YEARS

RM'000

-

1 - 2

YEARS

RM'000

-

UNDER

1 YEAR

RM'000

40,000

TOTAL

RM'000

40,000

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.
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2005
NUMBER

OF UNITS
'000

205,901

2005
NUMBER

OF UNITS
'000

124
70

200
200
250

30,750
24,900
34,670

100
7,130
1,950

150
50

32,700
300

99,400
97,450

MARKET
VALUE
RM'000

215
121

346
346
433

53,198
43,077
59,979

173
12,335
3,374

260
87

56,571
519

171,962
168,589

2005
RM'000

-

107,501
21,250

112,332
(6,191)

234,892

UNITHOLDERS' CAPITAL 

 

Authorised:   
At 3 August 2005 (date of commencement)/ 31 December 2005 

Issued and fully paid up:
At 3 August 2005 (date of commencement)  
Issue of new Units:
- 107,501,000 Units of RM1.00 each
- 17,000,000 Units of RM1.25 each
- 81,400,000 Units of RM1.38 each
Listing expenses (Note 17)

At 31 December 2005

As at 31 December 2005, the Manager did not hold any Units in Axis-REIT. However, the Directors of the Managers and related 
parties held Units in Axis-REIT as follows: 

The Manager's Directors' and substantial shareholders'   
   direct Unitholdings in Axis-REIT: 

Dato' Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah
Stephen Tew Peng Hwee

The Manager's Directors' direct Unitholdings in Axis-REIT:
Alex Lee Lao
Dato' Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi
Dato' Mohammed Salleh Bajuri

The Manager's substantial shareholders' direct
   Unitholdings in Axis-REIT:

Baiduri Kemas Sdn. Bhd.
Crystal Properties Sdn. Bhd.
Prestigious Landmarks Sdn. Bhd.

 
The Manager's related parties' direct Unitholdings
   in Axis-REIT:

Paridah binti Mohd Nor (spouse of Dato' Mohammed Salleh Bajuri)
Infinite Centre Sdn. Bhd.
Kasturi Gemilang Sdn. Bhd.
PAMS Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
PAMS Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

The Manager's Directors' indirect Unitholdings in 
   Axis-REIT:
   Dato' Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah*
   Dato' Mohammed Salleh Bajuri**
   Lim Kian Thiam***
   Stephen Tew Peng Hwee****

* Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Axis Equities Sdn. Bhd.
** Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in PAMS Holdings Sdn. Bhd.  and PAMS Corporation Sdn. Bhd., and also 

interest held by his spouse
*** Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Axis Equities Sdn. Bhd., Pet Resins (M) Sdn. Bhd., Salperton Holdings 

Sdn. Bhd., Infinite Centre Sdn. Bhd. and Pet Films (M) Sdn. Bhd.
**** Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Pet Resins (M) Sdn. Bhd., Salperton Holdings Sdn. Bhd. and Infinite 

Centre Sdn. Bhd.

The market value is determined by multiplying the number of Units with the market price of RM1.73 as at 31 December 2005.

9.



VALUATION

RM'000

93,000

26,000

65,000

32,000

36,200

80,000

332,200

ACQUISITION

COST

RM'000

84,600

22,500

56,400

25,450

29,192

71,440

289,582

REVALUATION RESERVE
 

This represents the net surplus arising from the revaluation of investment properties in accordance with the policy outlined in Note 

2(b) and is not distributable by way of cash dividends.       

Axis Business Park    

Axis Plaza

Crystal Plaza

Infinite Centre

Kompleks Kemajuan

Menara Axis

GROSS REVENUE

Gross rental income

Car park income

Other income

PROPERTY EXPENSES

Assessment

Service contracts and maintenance

Property management fees

Property management reimbursements 

Utilities

Others

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

Axis-REIT does not have any employee, hence no information is disclosed.
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REVALUATION

RESERVE

RM'000

8,400

3,500

8,600

6,550

7,008

8,560

42,618

3.8.2005 TO

31.12.2005

RM'000

12,320

1,007

434

13,761

3.8.2005 TO

31.12.2005

RM'000

333

547

320

133

530

437

2,300

10.

11.

12.

13.
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2005
NUMBER

OF UNITS
'000

205,901

2005
NUMBER

OF UNITS
'000

124
70

200
200
250

30,750
24,900
34,670

100
7,130
1,950

150
50

32,700
300

99,400
97,450

MARKET
VALUE
RM'000

215
121

346
346
433

53,198
43,077
59,979

173
12,335
3,374

260
87

56,571
519

171,962
168,589

2005
RM'000

-

107,501
21,250

112,332
(6,191)

234,892

UNITHOLDERS' CAPITAL 

 

Authorised:   
At 3 August 2005 (date of commencement)/ 31 December 2005 

Issued and fully paid up:
At 3 August 2005 (date of commencement)  
Issue of new Units:
- 107,501,000 Units of RM1.00 each
- 17,000,000 Units of RM1.25 each
- 81,400,000 Units of RM1.38 each
Listing expenses (Note 17)

At 31 December 2005

As at 31 December 2005, the Manager did not hold any Units in Axis-REIT. However, the Directors of the Managers and related 
parties held Units in Axis-REIT as follows: 

The Manager's Directors' and substantial shareholders'   
   direct Unitholdings in Axis-REIT: 

Dato' Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah
Stephen Tew Peng Hwee

The Manager's Directors' direct Unitholdings in Axis-REIT:
Alex Lee Lao
Dato' Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi
Dato' Mohammed Salleh Bajuri

The Manager's substantial shareholders' direct
   Unitholdings in Axis-REIT:

Baiduri Kemas Sdn. Bhd.
Crystal Properties Sdn. Bhd.
Prestigious Landmarks Sdn. Bhd.

 
The Manager's related parties' direct Unitholdings
   in Axis-REIT:

Paridah binti Mohd Nor (spouse of Dato' Mohammed Salleh Bajuri)
Infinite Centre Sdn. Bhd.
Kasturi Gemilang Sdn. Bhd.
PAMS Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
PAMS Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

The Manager's Directors' indirect Unitholdings in 
   Axis-REIT:
   Dato' Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah*
   Dato' Mohammed Salleh Bajuri**
   Lim Kian Thiam***
   Stephen Tew Peng Hwee****

* Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Axis Equities Sdn. Bhd.
** Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in PAMS Holdings Sdn. Bhd.  and PAMS Corporation Sdn. Bhd., and also 

interest held by his spouse
*** Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Axis Equities Sdn. Bhd., Pet Resins (M) Sdn. Bhd., Salperton Holdings 

Sdn. Bhd., Infinite Centre Sdn. Bhd. and Pet Films (M) Sdn. Bhd.
**** Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Pet Resins (M) Sdn. Bhd., Salperton Holdings Sdn. Bhd. and Infinite 

Centre Sdn. Bhd.

The market value is determined by multiplying the number of Units with the market price of RM1.73 as at 31 December 2005.

9.



TAX EXPENSE 

 
Current tax expense

      
Reconciliation of effective tax expense

Profit before taxation

Income tax using Malaysian tax rate
Non-deductible expenses
Effect of tax exempt income
Effect of income distribution exempted from tax

Tax expense

 
EARNINGS PER UNIT
 
The calculation of earnings per Unit is based on net income for the period of RM10,018,111 to the number of units in circulation 
during the period of 205,901,000.

DISTRIBUTION TO UNITHOLDERS
 
Distribution to Unitholders is from the following sources:

Net rental income
Interest income - non-tax exempt

Less: Expenses

Gross provision for distribution per Unit (sen)

Net provision for distribution per Unit (sen)

LISTING EXPENSES

 
Brokerage and commissions
Professional fees
Miscellaneous expenses

These expenses are deducted directly against the Unitholders' funds. Included in the professional fees are non-audit fees paid and 
payable to auditors of Axis-REIT amounting to RM155,000 for acting as independent reporting accountants with respect to the 
issuance and placement of additional Units in Axis-REIT.
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3.8.2005 TO
31.12.2005

RM'000

34

10,052

2,815
16

(87)
(2,710)

34

3.8.2005 TO
31.12.2005

RM'000

11,395
19

11,414
(1,737)

9,677

4.70

4.70

14.

15.

16.

17.
3.8.2005 TO
31.12.2005

RM'000

3,124
1,784
1,283

6,191



PORTFOLIO TURNOVER RATIO    

Portfolio Turnover Ratio ("PTR") (times)

The calculation of Portfolio Turnover Ratio ("PTR") is based on the average of total acquisitions and total disposals of investments 

in Axis-REIT for the period to the average net asset value during the period calculated on a weekly basis. 

MANAGEMENT EXPENSE RATIO

 

    

Management expense ratio ("MER") (%)

The calculation of MER is based on total fees of Axis-REIT incurred, including Manager's fees, Trustee's fees, audit fees, tax 

agent's fees and administrative expenses, to the average net asset value during the period. Since the average net asset value is 

calculated on a weekly basis, comparison of the MER of Axis-REIT with other real estate investment trusts which uses different 

basis of calculation may not be an accurate comparison.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2005, Axis-REIT has a capital commitment amounted RM14,490,000 in respect of the acquisition of a property 

(Note 24).

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Property management fees paid/payable to Property Manager

Acquisitions cost of a property payable to a related company of the 

   Directors of the Manager

These transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business.
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3.8.2005 TO

31.12.2005

RM'000

98

47

3.8.2005 TO

31.12.2005

0.88

18.

19.

20.

21.

3.8.2005 TO
31.12.2005

0.53

TAX EXPENSE 

 
Current tax expense

      
Reconciliation of effective tax expense

Profit before taxation

Income tax using Malaysian tax rate
Non-deductible expenses
Effect of tax exempt income
Effect of income distribution exempted from tax

Tax expense

 
EARNINGS PER UNIT
 
The calculation of earnings per Unit is based on net income for the period of RM10,018,111 to the number of units in circulation 
during the period of 205,901,000.

DISTRIBUTION TO UNITHOLDERS
 
Distribution to Unitholders is from the following sources:

Net rental income
Interest income - non-tax exempt

Less: Expenses

Gross provision for distribution per Unit (sen)

Net provision for distribution per Unit (sen)

LISTING EXPENSES

 
Brokerage and commissions
Professional fees
Miscellaneous expenses

These expenses are deducted directly against the Unitholders' funds. Included in the professional fees are non-audit fees paid and 
payable to auditors of Axis-REIT amounting to RM155,000 for acting as independent reporting accountants with respect to the 
issuance and placement of additional Units in Axis-REIT.
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3.8.2005 TO
31.12.2005

RM'000

34

10,052

2,815
16

(87)
(2,710)

34

3.8.2005 TO
31.12.2005

RM'000

11,395
19

11,414
(1,737)

9,677

4.70

4.70

14.

15.

16.

17.
3.8.2005 TO
31.12.2005

RM'000

3,124
1,784
1,283

6,191



1-5

YEARS

RM'000

-

-

2005

WITHIN

1 YEAR

RM'000

4,350

40,000
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TOTAL

RM'000

4,350

40,000

EFFECTIVE

INTEREST

RATE

%

2% - 3.7%

4.40% - 4.45%

AFTER

5 YEARS

RM'000

-

-

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risks management objectives and policies

Exposure to credit, interest rate and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of Axis-REIT's business. Axis-REIT has written risk 

management policies and guidelines which sets out their overall business strategies and its general risk management philosophy. 

Credit risk

At balance sheet date, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented 

by the carrying amount of financial asset. 

Interest rate risk

Axis-REIT's exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial 

liabilities. Interest rate risk is managed by the Manager on an ongoing basis with the primary objective of limiting the extent to which 

net interest expense could be affected by adverse movements in interest rates.

Liquidity risk

The Manager monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate to finance Axis-

REIT's operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In addition, the Manager also monitors and observes the 

Securities Commission's Guidelines on Real Estate Investment Trust concerning limits on total borrowings.

Effective interest rates and repricing analysis

In respect of interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following table indicates their effective 

interest rates at the balance sheet date and the periods in which they mature: 

   

  

Financial assets

Deposits with licensed banks  

Financial liabilities

Revolving credit

Fair values

Recognised financial instruments

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and short term borrowings, the 

carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES  

No comparative figures are presented as this is the first financial statement prepared by Axis-REIT.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

On 2 December 2005, Axis-REIT entered into a deed of novation and a supplemental agreement with Evergreen Landmark Sdn. 

Bhd. to purchase a property from Juta Bina Sdn. Bhd. for a total purchase price of RM16,100,000. The acquisition of the property is 

expected to be completed by June 2006.

22.

23.

24.



Unitholders' Statistics
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SIZE OF HOLDINGS

1 - 99

100 - 1,000

1,001 - 10,000

10,001 - 100,000

100,001 to less than 5% of issued units

5% and above of issued units

Total

%

0.00

0.14

1.27

3.16

51.56

43.87

100.00

NUMBER OF

UNITS HELD

50

295,450

2,607,000

6,514,000

106,164,500

90,320,000

205,901,000

%

0.08

26.81

46.63

14.72

11.51

0.25

100.00

NUMBER OF

UNITHOLDERS

1

326

567

179

140

3

1,216

ANALYSIS OF UNITHOLDINGS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

ANALYSIS OF UNITHOLDINGS

NAME

1. Prestigious Landmarks Sdn Bhd

2. Baiduri Kemas Sdn Bhd

3. Crystal Properties Sdn Bhd

4. Employees Provident Fund Board

5. Infinite Centre Sdn Bhd

6. Universal Trustee (Malaysia) Berhad
SBB Equity Income Fund

7. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt an for American International Assurance
Company Limited

8. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Nomura Asset Mgmt SG For Employees Provident Fund

9. Universal Trustee (Malaysia) Berhad
SBB Retirement Balanced Fund

10. Amanah Raya Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Public Smallcap Fund

11. AMMB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
AMTRUSTEE Berhad for HLG Penny Stock Fund

12. CIMB Real Estate Sdn Bhd

13. CIMSEC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
CIMB-Mapletree Management Sdn Bhd
For Mapletree Dextra Pte Ltd

14. Malaysia Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Bhd
Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad

NO. OF SHARES
HELD

34,670,000

30,750,000

24,900,000

7,400,000

7,130,000

5,139,000

4,500,000
 

4,419,000

3,223,300

2,900,000

2,459,000

2,250,000

2,250,000

2,241,000

%

16.84

14.93

12.09

3.59

3.46

2.50

2.19
 

2.15

1.57

1.41

1.19

1.09

1.09

1.09

30 LARGEST UNITHOLDERS 
(per Record of Depositors)
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SUBSTANTIAL UNITHOLDERS 
(per Record of Depositors)

NAME

Prestigious Landmarks Sdn Bhd

Baiduri Kemas Sdn Bhd

Crystal Properties Sdn Bhd

Total

NO. OF UNITS HELD

34,670,000

30,750,000

24,900,000

90,320,000

% OF UNITS HELD

16.84

14.93

12.09

43.86

NAME

15. SBB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Aviva Insurance Berhad

16. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for Prudential Equity Income Fund

17. Kasturi Gemilang Sdn Bhd

18. Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Exempt an for Prudential Assurance Malaysia Berhad

19. Asia life (M) Berhad
As beneficial Owner

20. AMMB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
AMTRUSTEE Berhad for Pacific Pearl Fund

21. Allianz Life Insurance Malaysia Berhad

22. Amanah Raya Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Public Dividend Select Fund

23. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for Prudential Dynamic Fund

24. Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
ING Insurance Berhad

25. Amanah Raya Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Kumpulan Wang Am

26. Amanah Raya Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
PB Balanced fund

27. Malaysian Assurance Alliance Berhad
As Beneficial Owner (Growth Fund)

28. MCIS Zurich Insurance Berhad

29. CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB for Neoh Gim Chin

30. Malaysian Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad
Overseas Assurance Corporation (Malaysia) Berhad

Total

NO. OF SHARES
HELD

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,950,000

1,864,600

1,857,000

1,789,800

1,770,400

1,560,000

1,495,900

1,470,100

1,352,000

1,250,000

1,200,000

1,070,000

1,000,000

990,000

158,851,100

%

0.97

0.97

0.95

0.91

0.90

0.87

0.86

0.76

0.73

0.71

0.66

0.61

0.58

0.52

0.49

0.48

77.15

30 LARGEST UNITHOLDERS (continued) 
(per Record of Depositors)



Glossary
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ADSB : Axis Development Sdn Bhd (Company No. 255676-V), being the 

holding company of the Manager

Axis-REIT / the Fund : Axis Real Estate Investment Trust
  
Bursa Securities / the Exchange : Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (Company No. 635998-W) 
  
Deed : The deed dated 15th June 2005 constituting Axis-REIT executed 

between the Trustee and the Manager

DPU : Distribution per Unit

GAV : Gross Asset Value

Gross Revenue : Gross rental income and other income earned from the properties 
including license fees,car park income, utilities and miscellaneous income

MER : Management expenses ratio

Manager : Axis REIT Managers Berhad (Company No. 649450-W), being the 
management company of Axis-REIT

NAV : Net asset value
  
Net Lettable Area : Consists of the total gross floor area less the common areas, such as 

corridors, amenities area and management offices of the building
  
OMV : Open market value

PTR : Portfolio Turnover Ratio

Property Management Company : Axis Management Sdn Bhd (Company No. 391004-P)

REIT(s) : Real estate investment trust(s)
  
RM and sen : Ringgit Malaysia and sen, respectively

Revaluation Reserve : The difference between the valuation of a property, as determined by a 
registered valuer, and the actual price paid  REIT. 

SC : Securities Commission
  
SCA : Securities Commission Act, 1993 
  
SC Guidelines on REITs : Guidelines on Real Estate Investment Trusts issued by the SC on 

3 January 2005
  
Sq. ft. : Square feet
  
Sqm : Square metres
   
Symphony Share Registrars : Symphony Share Registrars Sdn Bhd (Company No. 378993-D) 

(formerly known as Malaysian Share Registration Services Sdn Bhd)

Trustee : OSK Trustees Berhad (Company No. 573019-U)
being the Trustee of Axis-REIT

Unit(s)  : Undivided interest(s) in Axis-REIT as constituted by the Deed

Unitholder(s) : Holder(s) of the Units



Corporate Directory
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MANAGER 
Axis REIT Managers Berhad

Manager’s Principal Place of Business
Suite 6.04 Penthouse
Wisma Academy
4A Jalan 19/1
46300 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Tel : 03-7958 4882
Fax : 03-7957 6881

Manager’s Registered Office
Suite 11.1A Level 11
Menara Weld
76 Jalan Raja Chulan
50200 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : 03-2031 1988
Fax : 03-2031 9788

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGER
Dato’ Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi 
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

George Stewart LaBrooy
Executive Director

Dato’ Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Lim Kian Thiam
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Stephen Tew Peng Hwee
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Mohamed Salleh Bajuri
Independent Non-Executive Director 

Alex Lee Lao
Alternate to Dato’ Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah

Khoo Cheang Ee
Alternate to Lim Kian Thiam

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Dato’ Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi  (Chairman)
Dato’ Mohamed Salleh Bajuri 
Lim Kian Thiam

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
George Stewart LaBrooy 
Lim Kian Thiam
Stephen Tew Peng Hwee
Dato’ Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dato’ Abdul Azim Mohd Zabidi  (Chairman)
Dato’ Mohamed Salleh Bajuri 
Dato’ Abas Carl Gunnar bin Abdullah

COMPANY SECRETARY OF THE MANAGER
Yeoh Chong Keat
(Membership number: MIA2736)
4 Jalan 12/19
46200 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Axis Management Sdn Bhd
Wisma MINC
36 Jalan Datuk Sulaiman
Taman Tun Dr. Ismail
60000 Kuala Lumpur

TRUSTEE
OSK Trustees Berhad 
6th Floor Plaza OSK
Jalan Ampang
50450 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : 03-2333 8333
Fax : 03-2175 3288
Email : OSK_Trustees@osk.com.my
Website : www.osktrustees.com.my

PRINCIPAL BANKERS OF THE FUND
Malayan Banking Berhad
3rd Floor Menara Maybank
100 Jalan Tun Perak
50050 Kuala Lumpur

Bumiputra-Commerce Bank Berhad
1401B Tingkat 14
Menara Choy Fook On
Jalan Yong Shook Lin
46050 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan

AUDITORS 
KPMG
Wisma KPMG 
Jalan Dungun
Damansara Heights 
50490 Kuala Lumpur

TAX AGENTS
KPMG Tax Services Sdn Bhd
Wisma KPMG 
Jalan Dungun
Damansara Heights 
50490 Kuala Lumpur

REGISTRAR

Symphony Share Registrars Sdn Bhd

Level 26 Menara Multi-Purpose

Capital Square

No 8 Jalan Munshi Abdullah

50100 Kuala Lumpur

Tel : 03-2721 2222

Email : ssrs@symphony.com.my

Website : www.symphony.com.my

BURSA MALAYSIA STOCK NUMBER

AXREIT 5106



Global REITs - An Overview
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The Global Real Estate Investment Trust, or REIT, market has grown exponentially over the past few years. Today the global 

market is rapidly approaching USD 600 Billion in size and have provided investors with annualized returns of 12.7% versus 

Global equities of 8.1%. More and more countries have now embraced a tax efficient property listing structure to encourage 

private commercial property investment. There have been several key factors driving this growth. Global investors have 

become increasingly disillusioned by poorly performing equity markets and have been eager to access investments offering 

lower risks and steadier returns.

In a global population which is rapidly ageing, these investors are also slowly becoming acutely aware of the growing need to save for 

longer and increasingly underfunded retirement periods. More and more countries are discovering the benefits of REITs. They offer tax 

transparency, liquidity, improved corporate structures, simpler tax structures, easier access to all forms of capital including unsecured 

debt, and greater overall property market efficiency, and are altering their laws to create REIT-like vehicles to realise these benefits. 

The Asian Real Estate market enjoys the strongest growth prospects of all the regional property markets. It is estimated Asia (Ex-

Australia) contains approximately USD1,400 Billion of investment grade property, approximately the same as the US. The current total 

market capitalisation of the REIT sector in Asia is approaching USD 110Billion and rapidly increasing with over USD 13.6 Billion raised 

through new issues in 2005. 

The Australian market, along with the US market, is the most developed REIT market in the world. The Listed Property Trust status was 

originally created in 1971, although in their current form since 1985, and is characterised as being one of the most open regimes 

available. There are no restrictions on developments or on gearing, as long as the LPT pays all of its earnings out as dividends to 

shareholders. In the Australian LPT sector there are over 25 LPTs (ASX) with a total market capitalisation of around AUD 86 Billion. 

Since the listing of the  'LINK REIT', launched by the Hong Kong Housing Authority on 25th November 2005, 2 more REITs have since 

been launched. All three REITs have  attracted an astonishing amount of investor interest. The real estate sector is a massive part of the 

listed Hong Kong stock market, with over 50 listed property companies with a total market capitalisation approaching USD 80 Billion. 

The potential is clear and the size of the listed sector augurs well for REITs in Hong Kong now that tax transparency issues and the 

current legislative structure have been resolved.

Japan's Investment Trust Law was enacted in 2000 to create J-REITs. There has been huge growth in JREITs recently with one REIT 

being added almost every month. There are now 29 listed listed J-REITs with total assets approaching  USD 26 Billion.. The yield 

advantage that J-REITs offer domestic investors over domestic bonds has been cited as one of the strongest factors influencing the 

impressive growth of the sector to date, as they offer a current 2% yield advantage over Japanese Government bonds, although this 

has fallen from around a 4 to 5% gap since the sector was launched in 2001. 

Singapore currently has 7 listed REITs with a market capitalisation of approximately USD 6.4 Billion. There are expected many more 

new launches in 2006. The S-REIT system was created in Singapore in 2002 and allows offshore investments, some development 

exposure and some limited gearing.

Other Asian markets are well placed to benefit from a similar tax efficient structure. Taiwan has launched 2 REITs and Thailand has its 

first REIT in place. South Korea already has a structure in place (RETF and CR-REIT) although there are currently no listed REITs yet, 

and Philippines, China and India are now planning to introduce guidelines for REITs to be established in their countries.
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A   IS
REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST



This overview section is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read in conjunction with, the full text of this 
Prospectus. Words and expressions not defined herein have the same meaning as in the main body of this 
Prospectus, unless the context requires otherwise.

•  OVERVIEW OF AXIS-REIT

• Listed REITs represent a new investment opportunity in Malaysia.
• Axis-REIT is the first REIT in Malaysia launched and to be listed after the introduction of the revised SC Guidelines on REITs.

•  REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO

• Axis-REIT's real estate portfolio consists of five commercial, office and office/industrial real estate, with an open market 
 value of RM296 million and an aggregate Net Lettable Area (as at 1 June 2005) of 981,147 sqf. (See overleaf for details of 
 these properties) 
• The following table sets out certain information with respect to each of the Subject Properties:

 (1)  As at 1 June 2005
 (2)  As appraised by Colliers, Jordan Lee & Jaafar Sdn Bhd as at 1 September 2004
 (3)  Based on occupied rental rates for the month of May 2005
 (4)  The average occupancy rate is calculated based on the total net lettable area of the Subject Properties
 
•  THE MANAGER

• Axis REIT Managers, will be responsible for the management and administration of Axis-REIT and the implementation of 
 Axis-REIT's strategies.
• Each of the key team members has over 10 years of experience in the property industry. 
• The primary objectives of the Manager are to provide Unitholders with distribution of income and achieve long-term growth 
 in the NAV per Unit of the Fund.

•  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

• The Manager intends to distribute at least 95% of the distributable income of Axis-REIT for the 3 FYEs 31 December 2007. 
• In the absence of unforeseen circumstances, the Manager will be in a position to propose a dividend of 3.76 sen per Unit 
 based on 205,901,000 Units issued, representing 95% of total distributable income for the FYE 31 December 2005.  
• The forecast and projected dividend distribution for the FYE 31 December 2005, 2006 and 2007 are set out below:

*  Annualised yield 
^  For the FYE 31 December 2005, the distribution reflects the profit forecast of Axis-REIT for a period of 4 1/2 months

340,233 2.33 100.0 93 
171,967 3.52 99.0 80 
200,386 2.79 100.0 65 
150,388 1.79 100.0 32 
118,173 1.76 93.4 26 

981,147 - 99.04 296 



TAX TRANSPARENCY

• Investors who are qualifying tax residents of Malaysia will receive their income distributions without having tax deducted at 
 source, for which they must subsequently pay income tax at their applicable individual or corporate tax rate. Non-resident 
 Unitholders will be subject to withholding tax of 28% on the income distributed.

QUALITY TENANT BASE

• The Subject Properties enjoy a diversified and high quality tenant base with tenants involved in a variety of business and 
 trades. The business sectors of the Subject Properties' tenants are shown below:

Tenant Sectors by Net Lettable Area 
(as at 1 June 2005*)

• Key tenants of the Subject Properties include multinational corporations and prominent local companies such as Fuji Xerox 
 Asia Pacific Pte Ltd, Zuellig Pharma Sdn Bhd, Johnson & Johnson Sdn Bhd, Honeywell Engineering Sdn Bhd, Fuji Photo 
 Film (M) Sdn Bhd, Sportathlon (M) Sdn Bhd (operator of Fitness First), Philips Malaysia Sdn Bhd, American International 
 Assurance Co Ltd, DHL Worldwide Express Sdn Bhd, Tenaga Nasional Berhad group of companies, Scope International 
 (M) Sdn Bhd, U.C.I. Education Sdn Bhd, Konica Minolta Business Solutions (M) Sdn Bhd, Pharmaniaga Marketing Sdn 
 Bhd, CSE Cobra AP Sdn Bhd, Electrolux group of companies and Ricoh (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd.

LONG TERM LEASES

• As at 1 June 2005, the weighted average lease period of the Subject Properties' are shown below:

Weighted average lease period by Net Lettable Area
(as at 1 June 2005)

CONSERVATIVE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

•  The present SC Guidelines on REITs restricts the borrowing of a REIT to 35% of total asset value. Axis-REIT will have an 
 initial level of borrowing of 18.6% of total asset value. By adopting an initial conservative capital structure, the Manager 
 believes that Axis-REIT maintains operating flexibility when considering future acquisition opportunities and capital 
 expenditure requirements
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NOTICE ACCOMPANYING THE ELECTRONIC PROSPECTUS OF AXIS REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENT TRUST (“AXIS-REIT”) DATED 30 JUNE 2005 (“ELECTRONIC PROSPECTUS”)

(Unless otherwise indicated, specified or defined in this notice, the definitions in the Prospectus shall apply
throughout this notice)

Website

The Electronic Prospectus can be viewed or downloaded from Bursa Securities’ website at
www.bursamalaysia.com (“Website”).

Availability and Location of Paper/Printed Prospectus

Any applicant in doubt concerning the validity or integrity of the Electronic Prospectus should immediately
request a paper/printed copy of the Prospectus directly from the Manager, Aseambankers or MIH.
Alternatively, the applicant may obtain a copy of the Prospectus from participating organisations of Bursa
Securities, members of the Association of Banks in Malaysia and members of the Association of Merchant
Banks in Malaysia.

Jurisdictional Disclaimer

This distribution of the Electronic Prospectus and the sale of the Issue Units are subject to Malaysian law
and Aseambankers and the Manager take no responsibility for the distribution of the Electronic Prospectus
and/or the sale of the Issue Units outside Malaysia, which may be restricted by law in other jurisdictions.
The Electronic Prospectus does not constitute and may not be used for the purpose of an offer to sell or an
invitation of an offer to buy any Issue Units, to any person outside Malaysia or in any jurisdiction in which
such offer or invitation is not authorised or lawful or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such
offer or invitation.

Close of Application

Applications will be accepted from 10.00 a.m. on 30 June 2005  and will close at 5.00 p.m. on 14 July 2005
or such other date or dates as the Directors of Axis REIT Managers and the Managing Underwriter (in
respect of the Retail Offering) and the Sole Bookrunner (in respect of the Institutional Offering) at their
absolute discretion may mutually decide.

The Electronic Prospectus made available on the Website after the close of the Application period is made
available solely for informational and archiving purposes. No securities will be allotted or issued on the
basis of the Electronic Prospectus after the close of the Application period.

Person Responsible for the Internet Site in which the Electronic Prospectus is Posted

The Electronic Prospectus which is accessible at the Website is owned by Bursa Securities. Users’ access to
the Website and the use of the contents of the Website and/or any information in whatsoever form arising
from the Website shall be conditional upon acceptance of the terms and conditions of use as contained in
the Website.
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